

Scottish Food and Feed Law Guide



This document has been prepared by Food Standards Scotland (FSS) and is a guide to food and feed legislation in Scotland. It is not nor is it intended to be a substitute for legal advice. It is **guidance only** - it should not be relied upon or used for any other purpose. Further, the consolidated texts of EU Legislation referred to are intended for use as documentation tools and the institutions do not assume any liability for their content. Please note that **these texts do not provide a definitive position with respect to the law in force**. For legal purposes please refer to the texts published in the Official Journal.

Contents	
Document control	3
Introduction	5
Understanding links to EU legislation on Eurlex	6
How to read this document	
Framework Legislation	9
Food Safety Legislation12	2
Food Standards Legislation	7
The Food Safety Act 1990 amendments:	9
The Food Labelling Regulations 1996 (SI 1996 No. 1499) amendments:72	2
The Framework Agreement	5
FSS Code of Practice for Scotland	5
Food Legislation led by Other Government Departments	6
Recently Revoked Legislation (within the last 2 years)98	5
Revoked Legislation	5
List of Legislation Expected To Come Into Force In The Next 12 Months96	
EU Legislation Not Directly Linked to Domestic Instruments	8
Index	2

Title	Issue	Date	Amendments made
FSS Food and Feed Law in Scotland Guide	16	08/2017	 The Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Scotland) Amendment Order 2009 Updated EU regulation links to consolidated versions for Novel Foods, GM, Fish Labelling, Caseins and Caseinates and Foods for Specific Groups inc baby food, diet replacement, infant formula and foods for special medical purposes. Updates on legislation on materials and articles in contact with food and bottled water that is expected to come into force in the next 12 months <u>The Milk and Dairies (Scotland) Regulations 1990</u> included.
FSS Food and Feed Law in Scotland Guide	17	04/2018	 The Number Dames (Coordina) Regulations (1900) Instance. The Scotch Whisky Order 1990 has been superseded by the 2009 Whisky Regs, the 1990 order deleted. The Novel Food and novel Food Ingredients Regulations 1997 and The Novel Food and Novel Food Ingredients (Fees) Regulations 1997 have been superseded by The Novel Foods (Scotland) Regulations 2017. The 1997 regulations have been deleted and added to recently revoked legislation. Added GM Register to The Genetically Modified Food (Scotland) Regulations 2004 and The Genetically Modified Animal Feed (Scotland) Regulations 2004. Deleted reference to Directive 89/397 on the official control of foodstuffs as it is no longer in force. Deleted reference to Council Regulation (EC) No 1234/2007 as it is no longer in force and has been largely repealed by Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013. Amended links to guidance documents for Cocoa and Chocolate Products, Condensed Milk and Dried Milk, Jam

Document control

			 and Similar Products and Spreadable Fats. Outdated legislation removed - EU Regulations 2075/2005, 2076/2005 and 216/2014. EU legislation added - Regulations 16/2011, 931/2011 and 2016/1843. Updated weblinks for EU legislation – Regulations 853/2004, 882/2004 and 2073/2005. Inserted reference to The Animal Feed (Basic Safety Standards) (Scotland) Regulations 2018 – 2018 No.15. Inserted reference to the Food Safety (Sampling and Qualifications) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/84) Inserted reference to the Natural Mineral Water, Spring Water and Bottled Drinking Water (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2017. Updated information on legislation expected to come into force in the next 12 months. Format changes to whole document – removed column "Amended By/CIF" and moved information into "Domestic Legislation" column. General formatting improved for ease of use.
FSS Food and Feed Law in Scotland Guide	18	08/2018	 Updated legislation coming into force within the next 12 months (food contact materials, miscellaneous food standards and novel food). Updated information on legislation on bottled water – provided details of Commission Directive 2015/1787 and more information on the Natural Mineral Water, Spring Water and Bottled Drinking Water (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2017. Provided amended weblinks to Guidance on Temperature Control Legislation in the United Kingdom and Food Hygiene: A Guide for Businesses – in the column for The Food Hygiene (Scotland) Regulations 2006.

Introduction

FSS aim to provide a guide to local authorities detailing current food and feed law applicable in Scotland. We would like to thank those that took part in the project and took the time to provide feedback to help us develop the guide in a format that was useful.

However, please note:

- Legislation may change over time and the advice given is based on the information available when this guide was produced. It is not necessarily comprehensive or complete and is subject to revision in the light of further information.
- Only the courts can interpret statutory legislation with any authority.
- This guide is not intended to be a substitute for the relevant law. Independent legal advice should be sought where appropriate.
- Where external links are provided, FSS has no control over these and cannot accept responsibility for their content. Links to the legislation.gov website are not always kept up to date in real time when changes are made to legislation.
- It is intended to revise this document every 4 months from the most recent publication date in the document control.
- This guide applies only to Scotland. Similar legislation applies to England, Wales and Northern Ireland (link to the document containing this information can be found at: <u>http://www.food.gov.uk/enforcement/regulation/foodlaw/foodlawguide</u>)

Understanding links to EU legislation on Eurlex

The links provided to EU legislation will bring you to the bibliographic notice of the relevant legislation. Below is an example of what you will see when the link opens:

Title and reference

The legislation's title

Regulation (EC) No 1935/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 October 2004 on materials and articles intended to come into contact with food and repealing Directives 80/590/EEC and 89/109/EEC

OJ L 338, 13/11/2004, p. 4–17 (ES, CS, DA, DE, ET, EL, EN, FR, IT, LV, LT, HU, MT, NL, PL, PT, SK, SL, FI, SV) Special edition in Bulgarian: Chapter 13 Volume 045 P. 247 – 260. Special edition in Romanian: Chapter 13 Volume 045 P. 247 – 260.

Authentic language

Authentic language: Spanish, Czech, Danish, German, Estonian, Greek, English, French, Italian, Latvian, Lithuanian, Hungarian, Maltese, Dutch, Polish, Portuguese, Slovak, Slovenian, Finnish, Swedish, Icelandic, Norwegian

Dates

Date of document: 27/10/2004 Date of effect: 03/12/2004; Entry into force Date pub. + 20 See Art 28 Date of effect: 27/10/2006; Partial implementation See Art 28 End of validity date: 31/12/9999

Classifications

EUROVOC descriptor: marketing, health control, foodstuff, packaging product, consumer protection, food safety

Subject matter:

Foodstuffs Internal market - Principles, Approximation of laws

Directory code:

Industrial policy and internal market, Internal market: approximation of laws, Foodstuffs

Miscellaneous information

Author: European Parliament, Council of the European Union

Form: Regulation ——

Additional information: Extended to the EEA by 22005D0097, COD 2003/0272

Procedure number

2003/0272/COD

Relationship between documents

Treaty: Treaty establishing the European Community (Consolidated version 1992)

Legal basis:

<u>12002E095</u>

12002E251

Amendment to:

31980L0590 Repeal 31989L0109 Repeal

52003PC0689 Adoption

Latest consolidated version: 02004R1935-20090807-

Subsequent related instruments:

Amendment proposed by 52008PC0071

This tells you whether the legislation is a Directive, Regulation or Decision.

This will link you to a version of the legislation that incorporates all the amendments mentioned in the Amended By section.

The frequently asked questions section on Eurlex may be able to help and can be found here: http://eur-lex.europa.eu/content/help/faq/intro.html

Lists & links all amendments

made to original piece of

legislation.

How to read this document

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary		EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory su	immary	Link to guidance
<u>Main Domestic</u> Instrument	23/11/2010	Summary of main domestic legislation's purpose		Relevant EU Regulation	Summary of EU ins	trument's purpose	Link to relevant guidance
As amended by : <u>Amending</u> <u>Domestic</u> <u>Instrument</u>		Summary of amending instrument's effects on main domestic instrume	ent	<u>Relevant EU</u> <u>Regulation</u>	Summary of EU ins	trument's purpose	
Amending Domestic Instrument		Summary of amending instrument's effects on main domestic instrume	nt	Relevant EU Directive	Summary of EU ins	trument's purpose	
Main Domestic Instruments are shown in Bold	date of	g Into Force the Main	D	U Legislation relate	t is listed here.	Links to further g	guidance can be
Amending Instruments are shown in <i>Italics</i> Each instrument is <u>hyperlinked</u>	Domes is listed	tic Instrument I here	lir fo N	U Instruments which ked to Domestic L und in a table titled ot Directly Linked struments' later in	egislation can be d 'EU Legislation l to Domestic		

Framework Legislation

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	Came into force date (CIF)	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation and amendments	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Agriculture Act 1970 (as</u> <u>amended)</u>	29/05/1970	Contains general powers enabling Scottish Ministers or the Secretary of State for Scotland to make Regulations to control the manufacture, marketing and use of feeding stuffs, including provisions to implement or enforce EU law on animal feed.			
As amended by:					
<u>The Feed (Sampling and Analysis</u> <u>and Specified Undesirable</u> <u>Substances) (Scotland) Regulations</u> 2010 (SSI 2010/354)	15/11/2010	Amends and modifies provisions relating to Regulation (EC) No. 152/2009, puts in place administrative measures and provides for metric equivalents of imperial quantities.			
<u>The Animal Feed (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/373)</u>	23/11/2010	Amends and modifies definitions and sections relating to Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 and Regulation (EC) No 767/2009 and dis-applies			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	Came into force date (CIF)	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation and amendments	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		section 74A(3) to			
	00/00/4000	regulations concerning feed.	Devide tiere (EQ) No.		The Freed
The Food Safety Act 1990	29/06/1990	Provides the framework for all food legislation in Great Britain.	Regulation (EC) No 178/2002	Lays down the general principles and requirements of food law and establishes the European Food Safety Authority.	<u>The Food</u> <u>Safety Act</u> <u>1990 - A</u> <u>Guide for</u> <u>Food</u> <u>Businesses</u>
					Guidance for Food Business Operators (FBO) on Food Safety, Traceability, Product Withdrawal and Recall
The Food Safety (Sampling and Qualifications) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/84)	06/04/2013	These Regulations specify the qualifications necessary to be a public/food analyst or examiner for the purposes of the Food Safety Act 1990, prohibit certain persons from acting as a public analyst or food examiner, specify procedures to be followed			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	Came into force date (CIF)	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation and amendments	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		during sampling, and the form of certificate to be used.			
The Food (Scotland) Act 2015	13/01/2015	Established Food Standards Scotland (FSS) as the public sector food body for Scotland. Sets out the objectives, general functions and powers of FSS, and provides for governance and accountability arrangements as a Scottish public body.			

Food Safety Legislation

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Animal Feed</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/373)	23/11/2010	Provides for the enforcement of EU rules on the marketing of feed and the use of feed additives and undesirables,	Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003	Establishes rules for additives for use in animal nutrition.	European Commission Guides to Good Practice
		as required by Regulation (EC) 1831/2003 and Regulation (EC) 767/2009, by	Regulation (EC) No 767/2009	Establishes rules for placing on the market and use of feed	Feed Marketing
As amended by :		creating offences and penalties for breaches. <i>Provides for execution and</i>	Regulation (EC) 183/2005	Lays down requirements for feed hygiene.	Approved establishments
<u>The Animal Feed</u> (Scotland)	23/03/2017	enforcement of Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/327	Directive		Feed Additives
<u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2017</u> (SSI 2017/38)		(amending Regulation (EC) 1831/2003) relating to the marketing and conditions of use of feed additives consisting of preparations.	Directive 2002/32/EC	Establishes rules on undesirable substances in animal feed	<u>Undesirable</u> <u>Substances</u>
<u>The Feed (Hygiene</u> <u>and Enforcement)</u> <u>and Animal Feed</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/340)	12/01/2014	Provides for enforcement of Regulation 225/2012 (amending Annex II to Regulation 183/2005) regarding the approval of establishments placing on the market, for feed use, products derived from vegetable oils and blended fats and as regards the	Commission Directive 2008/38/EC	Establishes a list of intended uses of animal feed for particular nutritional purposes	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		specific requirements for production, storage, transport and dioxin testing of oils, fats and products derived thereof.			
The Contaminants in Food (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/ 217)	01/10/2013	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Commission Regulation (EC) 1881/2006	Council Regulation (EEC) No 315/93	Lays down the Community procedures for contaminants in food	Contaminants Guidance 2009
			Commission Regulation (EC) No 1881/2006	Sets maximum levels for certain contaminants in foodstuffs.	<u>Sampling</u> <u>Advice:</u> <u>Mycotoxins in</u> <u>Foodstuffs</u>
			Commission Regulation (EC) No 124/2009	Sets maximum levels for the presence of coccidiostats or histomonostats in food.	
			Sampling methods:		
			Commission Regulation (EC) No 401/2006	Sets out methods of sampling and analysis for the official control of the levels of nitrates in certain foodstuffs.	
			Commission Regulation (EC) 1882/2006	Sets out methods of sampling and analysis for the official control of the levels of dioxins and dioxin-like	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
			Commission Regulation (EC) 333/2007	PCBs in certain foodstuffs. Sets out methods of sampling and analysis for the official control of the levels of lead, cadmium, mercury, inorganic tin, 3-MCPD and benzo(a)pyrene in foodstuffs.	
			Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/705	Sets out methods of sampling and performance criteria for the methods of analysis for the official control of the levels of erucic acid in foodstuffs.	
			Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/644	Sets out methods of sampling and analysis for the control of levels of dioxins, dioxin-like PCBs and non- dioxin-like PCBs in certain foodstuffs.	
The Feed (Hygiene and Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2005 (SSI 2005/608)	01/01/2006	Provides for the enforcement of the feed- related articles of Regulation (EC) 178/2002 on the general principles of food and feed law and Regulation (EC) No 183/2005 laying down the requirements for feed hygiene.	Regulation (EC) 178/2002	Lays down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishes the European Food Safety Authority and lays down public consultation requirements	<u>Feed Hygiene</u> <u>EU</u> <u>Guides to good</u> <u>feed hygiene</u> <u>practice</u>

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
As amended by: <u>The Animal Feed</u> <u>(Basic Safety</u> <u>Standards)</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> Regulations 2018 (SSI 2018/15)	06/02/2018	Transposes article 21 of Council Directive 2013/59/Euratom regarding the basic safety standards for protection against the dangers arising from exposure to ionising radiation insofar as it relates to animal feed.	Regulation (EC) 183/2005	Sets out rules on feed hygiene, conditions and arrangements ensuring traceability of feed, conditions and arrangements for registration and approval of establishments.	
<u>The Feed (Hygiene</u> <u>and Enforcement)</u> <u>and Animal Feed</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/340)	12/01/2014	Provides for the incorporation of amendments to Regulation (EC) 183/2005 (made by Regulation 225/2012).			
<u>The Feed (Hygiene</u> <u>and Enforcement)</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u>	20/09/2009	Gives FSS additional enforcement powers; and updates references			
<u>(SSI 2009/263)</u>		Amends definition of excluded additives and inserts reference to secondary analysis by the			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Feed (Hygiene</u> <u>and Enforcement)</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2008</u> (S.S.I. 2008/201)	20/06/2008	Government Chemist.			
<u>The Feeding Stuffs</u> (Scotland) and the Feed (Hygiene and Enforcement) (Scotland) (Amendment) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/578)	26/12/2006	Provides additional enforcement powers to feed authorities.			
The Feed (Sampling and Analysis and Specified Undesirable Substances) (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/354)	15/11/2010	Implements certain provisions of Commission Regulation 152/2009, and reflects the revocation of a number of EU instruments by revoking their domestic implementing provisions.	Commission Regulation (EC) 152/2009 Directive 2002/32/EC	Lays down the methods of sampling and analysis for the official controls of feed. Sets the maximum levels of 'undesirable substances' before animal feed can be placed on the	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
The Animal Feed (Basic Safety Standards) (Scotland) Regulations 2018 (SSI 2018/15)	06/02/18	Transposes, insofar as it relates to animal feed, Article 21 (prohibition of practices) of of Council Directive 2013/59/Euratom, prohibiting the deliberate addition of a radioactive substance to animal feed and putting in place relevant sanctions.	Council Directive 2013/59/Eurato m	market. Lays down basic safety standards for protection against the dangers arising from exposure to ionising radiation (repealing and replacing previous Euratom directives)	
The Fishery Products (Official Controls Charges) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 2007/537)	01/01/2008	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Articles 26 and 27 of Regulation (EC) 882/2004. These regulations relate to charges for official hygiene inspections of fishery products and in establishments processing fishery products.	Regulation (EC) 882/2004	Requires Member States to ensure that adequate financial resources are available to provide the necessary staff and other resources for official controls by appropriate means.	
As amended by: <u>The Trade in Animals</u> <u>and Related</u> <u>Products (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2012</u>	01/07/2012	Amends interpretation of "third country import"			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>(SSI 2012 No. 177)</u> <u>The Trade in Animals</u> <u>and Related</u> <u>Products (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment Order</u> <u>2012</u> (S.S.I. 2012/198)	01/07/2012	Amends definition of "third country import"			
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2006</u> (<u>SSI 2006/3)</u>	11/01/2006	Provides for the execution and enforcement of certain Community instruments including- Commission Regulations 852/2004, 853/2004, 854/2004, 2073/2005 and 2074/2005.	Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 Regulation (EC) No 853/2004	Lays down the hygiene requirements for food business operators (including those operating at primary production level). Lays down additional requirements to certain food businesses	Food Hygiene: <u>A Guide for</u> <u>Businesses</u> <u>Guidance on</u> <u>Temperature</u> <u>Control</u> <u>Legislation in</u> the United
As amended by:			10 000/2004	handling products of animal origin.	Kingdom
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (<u>SSI 2010/69)</u>	13/04/2010	Substitutes the offences and penalties regulation and inserts new Schedules regarding slaughterhouses.	Regulation (EC) No 854/2004	Lays down requirements for official controls on products of animal origin and sets out what those enforcing the provisions have to do.	
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2012</u>	01/04/2012	Updates the definitions of certain Community instruments and extends the availability of remedial action	Commission Regulation (EC) No 2073/2005	Establishes the microbiological criteria that food businesses have to comply with as provided by Article 4(3) and 4(4) of Regulation	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>(SSI 2012/75)</u> <u>The Food Hygiene</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> Regulations 2014	01/06/2014	notices Removes the requirement to apply a special health mark to derived products from animals that have undergone	Commission Regulation (EC) No 2074/2005	(EC) 852/2004. Lays down implementing measures for certain products under 853/2004 and for the organisation of official controls	
<u>(SSI 2014/118)</u>	01/00/2014	emergency slaughter outside a slaughterhouse.		under 854/2004 and 882/2004, derogating from 852/2004 and amends 853/2004 and 854/2004. Provides for the duties of the competent authority.	
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2016</u> (<u>SSI 2016/260)</u>	15/10/2016	Implements Regulation (EU) 2015/1375 ("the Codification Regulation") which codifies certain provisions laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat and updates references to EU legislation.	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 2015/1375	Codifies and replaces Regulation (EC) 2075/2005 laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat. Further, lays down rules for the determination of the status of holdings to be officially recognised as applying specific controlled housing conditions.	
The Food Irradiation (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/261)	31/07/2009	Provides for control the treatment of food with ionising radiation and the importation and sale of irradiated food.	Directive 1999/2/EC	Applies to the manufacture, marketing and importation of foodstuffs treated with ionising radiation.	Irradiated Food

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
As amended by: <u>The Food Irradiation</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/328)	20/10/2010	Gives effect to EU provisions regarding approved facilities for irradiation of food and revises sanctions available.	Directive 1999/3/EC Commission Decision 2002/840/EC	Establishes a positive list for foodstuffs authorised for irradiation – "dried aromatic herbs, spices and vegetable seasonings". Provides a list of approved facilities in third countries for the irradiation of foods.	
The Food Protection (Emergency Prohibitions) (Dalgety Bay) (Scotland) Order 2012 (SSI 2012/ 135)	09/05/2012	Order made under the Food and Environment Protection Act 1985 ('FEPA' Order); prohibits the removal of seafood from the Dalgety Bay area.			
The Food Protection (Emergency Prohibitions) (Dounreay Nuclear Establishment) Order 1997 (SI 1997/2622)	29/10/1997	Order made under the Food and Environment Protection Act 1985 prohibiting the removal of seafood from a 2km radius centred on the offshore liquid discharge diffuser at the Dounreay nuclear licensed site.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
The Genetically Modified Animal Feed (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/433)	15/11/2004	Provides for the enforcement of the animal feed-related provisions of EC Regulation 1829/2003.	Regulation (EC) 1829/2003	Lays down Community procedures for the authorisation, supervision and labelling of genetically modified food and feed.	<u>Genetically</u> <u>Modified Feed</u>
			<u>GM Register</u>	Establishes an EU register of GM Food and Feed authorisations	
As amended by:					
<u>The Feeding Stuffs</u> (Application to Zootechnical <u>Additives Etc.)</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/3362)	03/01/2006	Provides that a number of domestic regulations apply to non-medicinal zootechnical additives as they apply to additives.	<u>Commission</u> <u>Regulation (EC)</u> <u>No 641/2004</u>	Provides detailed rules concerning applications for authorisation submitted in accordance with Articles 5 and 17 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 (except for those applications covered by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 503/2013).	
<u>The Feed (Sampling</u> <u>and Analysis and</u> <u>Specified</u> <u>Undesirable</u> <u>Substances)</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (<u>SSI 2010/354</u>)	15/11/2010	Updates references.	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1981/2006	Lays down detailed rules for the implementation of Article 32 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 as regards the contribution to the costs of the tasks of the Community Reference Laboratory and the establishment of national reference laboratories.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 503/2013	Applies to applications submitted under Articles 5, 11, 17 and 23 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 for the authorisation of genetically modified plants for food and feed uses, food or feed containing or consisting of genetically modified plants, food produced from or containing ingredients produced from genetically modified plants or feed produced from such plants.	
The Genetically Modified Food (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/432)	15/11/2004	Provides for enforcement and execution of Chapter II of Regulation (EC) 1829/2003 on genetically modified food & feed which relates to food.	Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003	Lays down community rules and procedures for authorisation, supervision and labelling of genetically modified food and feed.	
			GM Register	Establishes an EU register of GM Food and Feed authorisations	
			Commission Regulation (EC) No 641/2004	Provides detailed rules concerning applications for authorisation submitted in accordance with Articles 5 and 17 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 except for those applications covered by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 503/2013.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
			<u>Commission</u> <u>Regulation (EC)</u> <u>1981/2006</u>	Lays down detailed rules for the implementation of Article 32 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 as regards the contribution to the costs of the tasks of the Community Reference Laboratory and the establishment of national reference laboratories. Applies to applications submitted	
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 503/2013	Applies to applications submitted under Articles 5, 11, 17 and 23 of Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 for the authorisation of genetically modified plants for food and feed uses, food or feed containing or consisting of genetically modified plants, food produced from or containing ingredients produced from genetically modified plants or feed produced from such plants.	
The Genetically <u>Modified</u> <u>Organisms</u> (<u>Traceability and</u> <u>Labelling)</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Regulations 2004</u> (<u>SSI 2004/438</u>)	15/11/2004	Makes provisions for execution and enforcement of Regulation (EC) 1830/2003 by creating new offences for failure to comply with traceability and labelling requirements.	Regulation (EC) 1830/2003	Provides the framework for the traceability of products consisting of or containing genetically modified organisms, and food and feed produced from genetically modified organisms.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food (Scotland) Regulations 2012 (SSI 2012/318)	22/12/2012	Provides for the enforcement of EC Regulation No 10/2011 on plastic materials and articles intended to come into contact with food. Additionally provides for the revocation	Commission Regulation (EU) No 10/2011	Updates/replaces all existing rules on plastic materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.	
		and remake of nearly all existing national legislation on food contact materials and consolidation into a single SSI, the exception being the Plastic Kitchenware	Regulation (EC) No 1935/2004	Establishes the general principles governing the safety of all materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.	
As amended by:		(Conditions on Imports from China) (Scotland) Regulations 2011.	Commission Regulation (EC) No 2023/2006	Lays down the rules on good manufacturing practice for materials and articles intended to come into contact with food including recycled materials and articles.	
<u>The Food</u> (Miscellaneous Amendment and Revocation) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/83)	06/04/2013	Amends regulation 20 (execution and enforcement) to make its meaning clearer.	Commission Regulation (EC) No 282/2008	Sets out rules relating authorisation of plastic recycling processes where the recycled plastic products are intended to come into contact with food. (Enforcement provisions for Regulation (EC No 282/2008 not yet implemented)	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Food Safety</u> (Sampling and Qualifications) (Scotland) Regulations 2013	06/04/2013	Provides that sampling provisions do not apply in respect of S.S.I 2012/318	Commission Regulation (EC) No 450/2009	Establishes requirements for the marketing of active and intelligent materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.	EU Guidance to the Commission Regulation (EC) No 450/2009 of 29 May 2009 on
(SSI 2013/84)			Commission Directive 2007/42/EC	Establishes requirements relating to materials and articles made of regenerated cellulose film intended to come into contact with food.	active and intelligent materials and articles intended to come into contact with food
			<u>Council</u> <u>Directive</u> <u>84/500/EEC</u>	Sets down the limits of lead and cadmium which may be present in ceramic articles intended to come into contact with foodstuffs, and the methods of testing/analysing their presence.	
			<u>Council</u> <u>Directive</u> <u>78/142/EEC</u>	Sets down the limits on vinly chloride monomer (VCM) which may be present in articles intended to come into contact with foodstuffs.	
			<u>Commission</u> <u>Regulation (EC)</u>	Deals with the restriction of certain epoxy derivatives in materials and	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
			<u>No 1895/2005</u>	articles intended to come into contact with food.	
The Meat (Official Controls Charges) (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/262)	28/09/2009	Provides for the collection of fees to ensure correct execution and enforcement of official controls, performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules by operators of approved meat premises	Regulation (EC) No 882/2004	Requires Member States to ensure that adequate financial resources are available to provide the necessary staff and other resources for official controls by appropriate means, including permitting Member States to charge fees to cover the costs of such official controls.	
<u>The Milk and</u> <u>Dairies (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 1990</u> (SI 1990/2507)	01/01/1991	Imposes a duty on persons who milk cows or handle milk containers to notify a dairyman if they are suffering from or show symptoms of having an infectious disease and contain offence provisions for any breach of this duty.			
The Novel Foods (Scotland) Regulations 2017 (SSI 2017/415)	01/01/2018	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Regulation (EU) 2015/2283.	Regulation (EU) 2015/2283	Lays down rules for the placing of novel foods on the market within the Union, including establishing a EU list of novel foods and setting out the conditions for inclusion thereon.	<u>Business</u> <u>guidance - novel</u> <u>foods</u>

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/2469	Lays down administrative and scientific requirements for applications referred to in Article 10 of Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 on novel foods	
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/2468	Lays down administrative and scientific requirements concerning traditional foods from third countries, in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2015/2283.	
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/2470	Establishes the Union list of novel foods, in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2015/2283.	
The Official Feed and Food Controls (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/446) As amended by:	25/01/2010	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004, as amended.	Regulation (EC) No 882/2004	Makes provision for official controls to be performed to ensure compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules. Requires increased levels of official controls on imports of certain feed and food of non-	Guidance for Enforcement Officers on Regulation (EC) No. 669/2009 (as amended by Regulation (EU)
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/5)	25/01/2010	Amends rules on the suspension of designation of points of entry	Commission Regulation (EC) No 669/2009	animal origin. Lays down the rules for the increased levels of official controls on imports of feed and food of non-	No. 212/2010) regarding the increased levels of official controls on imports of
			110 000/2003	animal origin. The specific feed	certain feed and

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2011</u> (<u>SSI 2011/93</u>)	01/04/2011	Removes the right of a Food Business Operator to continue to operate pending appeal.	Commission Decision 2006/677/EC	and food is listed in Annex I. Sets out guidelines laying down criteria for the conduct of audits on the official controls conducted under Regulation (EC) No 882/2004	food of non- animal origin and amending Decision 2006/504/EC
<u>The Feed (Sampling</u> and Analysis and <u>Specified</u> <u>Undesirable</u> <u>Substances)</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/354)	15/11/2010	Updates references.			
<u>The Animal Feed</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/373)	23/11/2010	Updates references.			
<u>The Transmissible</u> <u>Spongiform</u> <u>Encephalopathies</u>	28/05/2010	Updates references			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/177)					
<u>The Trade in Animals</u> <u>and Related</u> <u>Products (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2012</u> (SSI 2012/177)	01/07/2012	Updates references			
<u>The Food Safety,</u> <u>Food Hygiene and</u> <u>Official Controls</u> (Sprouting Seeds) (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/333)	31/12/2013	Amends definition of "Import Provisions" and adds offence for importing or placing sprouts or seeds intended for sprouting on the market which do not comply with certification requirements			
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> <u>and Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/213)	01/10/2014	Amends definition of "Import Provisions"			
Emergency declarations issued			Commission Implementing	Repeals Regulation (EC) No 1135/2009 imposing special	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
under regulation 35 of The Official Feed and Food Controls (Scotland) Regulations 2009:			Reg (EU) 2015/170	conditions governing the import of certain products originating in or consigned from China.	
OFFC/2015/S/001 Melamine in Milk and Milk products		Imposes special conditions governing the import of infant milk, other milk products, soya and soya products and of ammonium bicarbonate intended for food and feed originating in or consigned from China due to high levels of melamine.	<u>Commission</u> <u>Implementing</u> <u>Reg (EU)</u> <u>2015/175</u>	Lays down special conditions applicable to the import of guar gum originating in or consigned from India due to contamination risks by pentachlorophenol and dioxins.	
OFFC/2015/S/002 Pentachlorophenol and Dioxins in Guar Gum from India		Lays down special conditions applicable to the import of guar gum originating in or consigned from India due to contamination risks by pentachlorophenol and dioxins.	<u>Commission</u> Implementing <u>Reg (EU)</u> 2016/6	Imposes special conditions governing the import of feed and food originating in or consigned from Japan following the accident at the Fukushima nuclear power station and repealing Implementing Regulation (EU) No 322/2014	
	1		200 30 of 116		1

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
OFFC/2017/S/002 Import of feed and food Japan.		Imposes special conditions governing the import of feed and food originating in or consigned from Japan following the accident at the Fukushima nuclear power station.	Commission Regulation (EU) No 211/2013	Lays down certification requirements for imports into the Union of sprouts and seeds intended for the production of sprouts.	
OFFC/2014/S/003 Betel leaves from Bangladesh.		Suspends imports from Bangladesh of foodstuffs containing or consisting of betel leaves ('Piper Betle')	Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2016/84	Amends Implementing Decision 2014/88/EU suspending temporarily imports from Bangladesh of foodstuffs containing or consisting of betel leaves ('Piper Betle') as regards its period of application.	
OFFC/2016/S/002 Aflatoxins in food and feed, various countries.		Imposes special conditions governing the import of groundnuts from Brazil, Capsicum annuum and nutmeg from India and nutmeg from Indonesia	Commission Implementing Reg (EU) 2016/24	Imposes special conditions governing the import of groundnuts from Brazil, Capsicum annuum and nutmeg from India and nutmeg from Indonesia and amending Regulations (EC) No 669/2009 and (EU) No 884/2014.	
OFFC/2016/S/004 Dried Beans from Nigeria		Provides for emergency measures suspending imports of dried beans from Nigeria.	Commission Implementing Reg (EU) 2016/874	Amends Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/943 on emergency measures suspending imports of dried beans from Nigeria	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
OFFC/2017/S/001 Betel Leaves from India		Lays down specific conditions applicable to the introduction into the Union of betel leaves and sesame seeds from India	Commission Implementing Reg (EU) 2017/186	Lays down specific conditions applicable to the introduction into the Union of consignments from certain third countries due to microbiological contamination and amending Regulation (EC) No 669/2009.	
The Plastic <u>Kitchenware</u> (Conditions on Imports from China) (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2011</u> (SSI 2011/282)	01/07/2011	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Regulation (EU) No 284/2011, which lays down conditions and procedures for import of polyamide and melamine plastic kitchenware originating in or consigned from China and Hong Kong.	Commission Regulation (EU) No 284/2011	Lays down specific conditions and detailed procedures for the import of polyamide and melamine plastic kitchenware originating in or consigned from the People's Republic of China and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, China.	<u>Technical</u> <u>Guidelines on</u> <u>sampling</u>
The Specified Products from China (Restriction on first placing on the Market) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/148)	15/04/2008	Puts in place emergency measures regarding the unauthorised genetically modified organism "Bt63" in rice products, creating offences for non-compliance.	Commission Implementing Decision 2011/884/EU	Makes provision for emergency measures regarding unauthorised genetically modified organism "Bt63" in rice products.	
Amended by:					

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Specified</u> <u>Products from China</u> (Restriction on First <u>Placing on the</u> <u>Market) (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2012</u> (SSI 2012/3)	12/01/2012	Implements Commission Implementing Decision 2011/884/EU which provides for import restrictions that previously applied to Bt63 genetically modified rice to apply, with modifications, to all unauthorised genetically modified rice.			
<u>The Specified</u> <u>Products from China</u> (<u>Restriction on First</u> <u>Placing on the</u> <u>Market</u>) (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2013</u> (<u>SSI 2013/221</u>)	04/07/2013	Implements amendments to Commission Implementing Decision 2011/884/EU, adding additional categories of rice products to those that are subject to import restrictions and modifying those restrictions.			
Emergency Declarations made under regulation 61 of the <u>Products of</u> <u>Animal Origin</u> (<u>Third Country</u> <u>Imports) Regulation</u> <u>2007</u> (SSI 2007/1)	01/02/2007		Commission Decision 2007/82/EC	Provides for emergency measures suspending imports from the Republic of Guinea of fishery products intended for human consumption.	
<u>POAO Reg</u> <u>61/SCO/CHA/04</u>	07/02/2007	Fishery products from the Republic of Guinea.	<u>Com Dec</u> <u>2007/642/EC</u>	Provides for emergency measures applying to fishery products from	

Page 33 of 116

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
POAO Reg 61/SCO/CHA/05	09/10/2007	Histamine in fishery products from Albania.	Com Decision 2010/381/EU	Albania and intended for human consumption. Provides for emergency measures applicable to consignments of aquaculture products imported from India and intended for human	
<u>POAO Reg 61/038/S</u>	14/07/2010	Crustaceans from India.		consumption.	
Emergency Declarations made under regulation 25 of <u>the Trade in</u> <u>Animals & Related</u> <u>Products (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations</u> 2012 (SSI 2012/ 177):	01/07/2012	Feed or food originating or consigned from Japan. Bivalve molluscs from Turkey.	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2016/6	Provides for special conditions governing the import of feed and food originating in or consigned from Japan following the accident at the Fukushima nuclear power station	
<u>TARP Reg 25/074/S</u>	23/11/2017	Bivalve molluscs from Peru.	Commission Implementing Reg (EU) 2017/2369	Provides for protective measures on imports of bivalve molluscs from Turkey intended for human consumption.	

CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
29/12/2017	Crustaceans from Bangladesh	Commission Decision 2014/874 (EU)	Provides for emergency suspending imports from Peru of certain bivalve molluscs intended for human consumption.	
16/10/2017		Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/2260	Provides for emergency measures applicable to crustaceans imported from Bangladesh intended for human consumption.	
01/12/2015				
01/01/2005	Provides enforcement powers in respect of Articles 14, 16 (in so far as it relates to food), 18 (in so far as it concerns food business operators) and 19 of the EU General Food Law Regulation 178/2002. It designates competent authorities and enforcement authorities; makes provision for offences and penalties;	Regulation (EC) No 178/2002	Lays down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety.	
	16/10/2017 01/12/2015	29/12/2017Crustaceans from Bangladesh16/10/201716/10/201701/01/2005Provides enforcement powers in respect of Articles 14, 16 (in so far as it relates to food), 18 (in so far as it concerns food business operators) and 19 of the EU General Food Law Regulation 178/2002.It designates competent authorities; makes provision	29/12/2017Crustaceans from BangladeshCommission Decision 2014/874 (EU)16/10/2017Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/2260Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/226001/01/2005Provides enforcement powers in respect of Articles 14, 16 (in so far as it relates to food), 18 (in so far as it concerns food business operators) and 19 of the EU General Food Law Regulation 178/2002.Regulation (EC) No 178/2002It designates competent authorities; makes provision for offences and penalties; and makes someIt designates competent authorities; makes provision	29/12/2017 Crustaceans from Bangladesh Commission Decision 2014/874 (EU) Provides for emergency suspending imports from Peru of certain bivalve molluscs intended for human consumption. 16/10/2017 Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/2260 Provides for emergency measures applicable to crustaceans imported from Bangladesh intended for human consumption. 01/12/2015 Provides enforcement powers in respect of Articles 14, 16 (in so far as it relates to food), 18 (in so far as it concerns food business operators) and 19 of the EU General Food Law Regulation 178/2002. Lays down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety. It designates competent authorities; makes provision for offences and penalties; and makes some It designates competent authorities; makes provision for offences and penalties; and makes some Regulation 178/2002

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		to the Food Safety Act 1990,			
		in particular sections 7 and 8.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
The Addition of Vitamins, Minerals and Other Substances (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 2007/325)Amended by: The Food Supplements, Vitamins and Other Substances (Scotland) Regulations 2009 	07/08/2007	Implements and enforces Regulation (EC) No 1925/2006. Sets out penalties and transitional measures. Provides execution and enforcement of amendments to Regulation (EC) No. 1925/2006 as regards the lists of vitamins and minerals and their forms that can be added to foods, including food supplements. These Regulations also update the references to Directives referred to in the 2003 Regulations.	Regulation (EC) No 1925/2006	Harmonises the provisions which relate to the addition of vitamins and minerals and of certain other substances to foods, with the purpose of ensuring the effective functioning of the internal market, whilst providing a high level of consumer protection.	Fortified foods: guidance to compliance with European Regulation (EC) No. 1925/2006 on the addition of vitamins and minerals and certain other substances to food.

Food Standards Legislation

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Addition of</u> <u>Vitamins, Minerals</u> <u>and Other</u> <u>Substances</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (<u>SSI 2010/308</u>)	01/10/2010	Updates reference to Regulation (EC) No 1925/2006.			
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
<u>The Bread and</u> <u>Flour Regulations</u> (<u>SI 1998/141)</u>	19/02/1998	Sets out national rules that require bread and flour to meet certain compositional criteria.			Bread and Flour Regulations 1998 (as amended) Guidance Notes https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Amended by: <u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> <u>(SSI 2005/ 616)</u>	01/01/2006	Revokes regulation 9 (Defence in relation to exports).			
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather that the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
The Casein and Caseinates (Scotland) (No2) Regulations 2016 (SSI 2016/422)	21/12/2016 (partial) & 22/12/2016 (remaining regulations)	Implements Directive 2015/2203 and prescribes definitions and descriptions for edible casein and caseinate products.	Directive (EU) 2015/2203	Makes provision on standards, marketing and labelling relating to caseins and caseinates intended for human consumption.	
The Cocoa and Chocolate Products(Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003 No. 291)	03/08/2003	Implement Directive 2000/36/EC and prescribe definitions and reserved descriptions for designated cocoa and chocolate products.	Directive 2000/36/EC	Lays down rules on the composition and labelling of cocoa and chocolate products intended for human consumption.	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Amended by: <u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> <u>(SSI 2005/616)</u>	01/01/2006	Revokes regulation 9 (Defence in relation to exports).			
<u>The Food Information</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather that the Food Labelling Regulations 1996 and introduces a new section at regulation 5 (d) regarding UK understanding.			
The Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts (Scotland) Regulations 2001 (SSI 2001/38) Amended by:	17/03/2001	Implements Directive 1999/4/EC and prescribe definitions and reserved descriptions for coffee extracts and chicory extracts.	Directive 1999/4/EC	Lays down rules on the product names, descriptions, labelling and composition and "specified declarations" of coffee extracts and Chicory extracts.	
<u>The Specified Sugar</u> <u>Products (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2003</u> (SSI 2003/527)	28/11/2003	Updates references to the 2003 Sugar Products Regulations.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/616)	01/01/2006	Revokes regulation 9 (Defence in relation to exports).			
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
The Condensed Milk and Dried Milk (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/311)	17/07/2003	Implements Directive 2001/114/EC and prescribe definitions and reserved descriptions for condensed and dried milk products.	Council Directive 2001/114/EC	Makes provision relating to certain partly or wholly dehydrated preserved milk products intended for human consumption.	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition
Amended by: <u>The Condensed Milk</u> <u>and Dried Milk</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2003</u> (SSI 2003/492)	14/11/2003	Regulation 2 corrects minor errors in Schedule 1 to the principle Regulations.	<u>Commission</u> <u>Directive</u> <u>79/1067/EEC</u>	Makes provision about the methods of analysis for testing of certain partly or wholly dehydrated preserved milk products intended for human consumption.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Food Safety (Act of Accession concerning the</u> <u>Czech Republic and other States)</u> (<u>Consequential</u> <u>Amendments)</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2004</u> (<u>SSI 2004/395</u>)	07/10/2004	updates the reference to Council Directive 2001/114/EC, to reflect accession of new Member States to the EU.	<u>Commission</u> <u>Directive</u> <u>87/524/EEC</u>	Lays down Community methods of sampling for chemical analysis for the monitoring of preserved milk products intended for human consumption.	
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/616)	01/01/2006	Revokes Regulation 8 (defence in relation to exports).			
<u>The Food Hygiene</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2006</u> (SSI 2006 No 3)	11/01/2006	<i>Makes minor amendment to Note 4 of Schedule 1.</i>			
<u>The Condensed Milk</u> <u>and Dried Milk</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2008</u>	22/02/2008	Makes amendment to the definitions of partly dehydrated milk and totally dehydrated milk.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(SSI 2008/12) The Food Additives Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/436)	20/01/2010	Updates note 2 of Schedule 1 regarding what the designated product may contain.			
The Country of Origin of Certain Meats (Scotland) Regulations 2016 (SSI 2016/84)	14/03/2016	Provides for the enforcement in Scotland of mandatory provision of country of rearing and country of slaughter information for pre-packed fresh, chilled and frozen meat of pigs, sheep, goats and poultry.	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1337/2013	Lays down the technical rules for the application of Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 as regards the indication of the country of origin or place of provenance for fresh, chilled and frozen pig, sheep, goat and poultry meat.	
The Fish Labelling (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/256)	05/10/2013	Provides for the execution and enforcement of the traceability and consumer information requirements contained in a number of EU instruments and to reflect new consumer information requirements in line with the Common Fisheries Policy.	Council Regulation (EC) No. 1224/2009	Establishes a Community control system for ensuring compliance with the rules of the Common Fisheries Policy - including the traceability of fishery and aquaculture products from catching/harvesting through all stages of production, processing and distribution.	Seafish Guidance on traceability and labelling Traceability and consumer information guidance
<u>The Fish Labelling</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2015</u>	15/03/2015	<i>Updates the 2013 Regulations to reflect changes in EU legislation,</i>	Commission Implementing Regulation	Lays down detailed rules for the implementation of Council Regulation	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(SSI 2015/48)		including additional consumer information requirements that they introduce. These rules extend the existing requirement to show consumers the species and where or whether fish were caught or farmed.	(EU) No. 404/2011 Regulation (EU) No. 1379/2013	1224/2009. Common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products.	
The Food Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014 (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Provides for the execution and enforcement of Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 on the provision of food information to consumers.	<u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> (FIC)	Covers EU general food labelling and nutrition labelling requirements, makes provision for an implementing act regarding voluntary provision of information on the absence or reduced presence of gluten in food.	Food Information regulations 2014 – summary guidance
Amended by: <u>The Food Information</u> (Miscellaneous <u>Amendments</u>) (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2015</u> (SSI 2015/410)	19/01/2016	Makes minor changes to the text of the Food Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014 and introduce national measures regarding food sold loose.	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1155/2013	Introduces requirements on the provision of food information to consumers as regards information on the absence or reduced presence of gluten in food.	
The Food Information		Introduces enforcement	Commission	Sets out European rules for	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2016</u> (SSI 2016/191)	20/07/2016	provisions relating to requirements for the provision of information to consumers on the absence or reduced presence of gluten in food	Delegated Regulation (EU) No 78/2014	claims on the absence or reduced presence of certain cereals in foods.	
			Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 828/2014	Requirements for the provision of information to consumers on the absence or reduced presence of gluten in food	
The Food (Lot Marking) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1502)	01/07/1996	Implements EU Directive on lot marking in the UK and requires that food forming part of a lot is clearly identified.			
Amended by: <u>The Food Information</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to the 1996 Regulations to reflect the changes introduced by Directive 2011/91/EC which repealed and replaced earlier EU instruments on this subject. Also updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		1996.			
The Food Additives, Flavourings, Enzymes and Extraction Solvents (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/266)	31/10/2013	Provides for the execution and enforcement of EU Regulations on food additives, flavourings (including smoke flavourings) and enzymes. Transposes the extraction solvent requirements Directive 2009/32/EC.	Regulation (EC) No. 2065/2003 Regulation (EC) No. 1332/2008	Makes provision for smoke flavourings used or intended for use in or on foods. Makes provision for regulation of food enzymes.	Food additives legislation: guidance notes
The 2013 Regulations revoke and replace all food additive type legislation. However, the four measures listed			Commission Regulation (EU) 562/2012	Amends Commission Regulation (EU) 234/2011 with regard to specific data required for the risk assessment of food enzymes.	
below have only been partially revoked – see schedule 5 of the 2013 Regulations			Regulation (EC) No. 1333/2008	Lays down rules on food additives used in foods.	
for details: <u>The Food Enzymes</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u> (SSI 2009/435)	20/01/2010		Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1334/2008	Lays down rules on flavourings and certain food ingredients with flavouring properties for use in and on foods.	
The Food Additives	20/01/2010		Commission	Establishes the Union list of	

Page **46** of **116**

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/436) The Food Additives	23/05/2012		Regulation (EU) 1321/2013	authorised smoke flavouring primary products for use as such in or on foods and/or the production of derived smoke flavourings	
(Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2012 (SSI 2012/119)	20/00/2012		Commission Regulation (EU) 873/2012	Union list of flavourings and source materials set out in Annex I to Regulation (EC) 1334/2008	
<u>The Flavourings in</u> <u>Food (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/439)	20/01/2011		<u>Commission</u> <u>Regulation</u> (EU) 872/2012	Adopts the list of flavouring Substances provided for by Regulation (EC) 2232/96 introducing it in Annex I to Regulation (EC) 1334/2008.	
			Commission Regulation (EU) No 231/2012	Lays down specifications for food additives listed in Annexes II and III to Regulation (EC) No 1333/2008.	
			Council Directive 2009/32/EC	Deals with extraction solvents in the production of foodstuffs	
The Food for Particular	01/01/2010	Provides for the execution and enforcement of	Commission Regulation	Makes provision for substances that may be	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Nutritional Uses (Addition of Substances for Specific Nutritional Purposes (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/427)		Commission Regulation 953/2009.	(EC) No 953/2009	added for nutritional purposes in foods for particular nutritional uses.	
The Foods Intended for Use in Energy Restricted Diets for Weight Reduction Regulations 1997 (SI 1997/2182) Amended by:	31/03/1999	Implements Commission Directive 96/8/EC on foods intended for use in energy-restricted diets for weight reduction. [NB From 20 th July 2016 this regulation only covers foods for total diet replacement]	Commission Directive 96/8/EC	Lays down compositional and labelling requirements for foods for particular nutritional uses intended for use in energy restricted diets for weight reduction and present as such. These foods are specifically formulated foods which replace the whole of the	
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/616) The Food for	01/01/2006	Revokes regulation 8 of the Foods Intended for Use in Energy Restricted Diets for Weight Reduction Regulations 1997.	EU Regulation (EU) 609/2013	daily diet or specific meals of the daily diet. Redefines 'total diet replacement for weight control' to clarify which foods fall within the category covered by Directive	
Particular Nutritional Uses (Scotland) (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2007	15/10/2007	Clarifies restriction of claims in labelling, advertising and presentation		96/8/EC.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>(SSI 2007/424)</u> <u>The Food Information</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates reference to "Food labelling regulations 1996" to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 on provision of food information to consumers.			
<u>The Foods for</u> <u>Specific Groups</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2016</u> (SSI 2016/190)	20/07/2016	Removes meal replacement from scope. Only total diet replacement which replaces the whole of the total daily diet remains in scope.			
The Foods for Special Medical Purposes (Scotland) Regulations 2000 (SSI 2000/130)Amended by:	01/11/2001	Implements Commission Directive 1999/21/EC on dietary foods for special medical purposes.	Commission Directive 1999/21/EC	Sets out rules for the composition and labelling of foods that are specifically formulated, processed and intended for the dietary management of diseases, disorders or medical conditions of individuals who are being treated under	
<u>The Food Safety (Act</u> <u>of Accession</u> <u>concerning the</u> <u>Czech Republic and</u> <u>other States)</u> <u>(Consequential</u>	07/10/2004	Updates an amendment to the Directive, to reflect the accession of new EU Member States.		medical supervision.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>Amendments)</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2004</u> (SSI 2004/395)	01/01/2006	<i>Revokes regulation 6 on defence in case of export</i>			
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/616)	15/10/2007	Updates definition of Directive 1999/21/EC			
<u>The Food for</u> <u>Particular Nutritional</u> <u>Uses (Scotland)</u> (<u>Miscellaneous</u> <u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2007</u> (SSI 2007/424)	11/01/2008	Updates definition of Directive1991/21/EC			
<u>The Infant Formula</u> <u>and Follow on</u> <u>Formula (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations (SSI</u> <u>2007/549)</u>	04/11/2008	Inserts transitional arrangements with regard to manganese			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Infant Formula</u> <u>and Follow on</u> <u>Formula (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2008</u> <u>(SSI 2008/322)</u>	04/11/2008				
The Food Labelling Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1499) Please see the guidance column for details of the extent of revocation.	01/06/1996	Sets out general rules for the labelling of foods, implementing various pieces of EU legislation, which have now been repealed.	Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013	Covers EU general food labelling and nutrition labelling requirements and repeals older EU legislation in this area. Established a common organisation of the markets in agricultural products.	Following the introduction of the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation, the Food Labelling Regulations 1996 were largely revoked by the Food Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014. However, parts of Schedule 8 regarding alcohol claims and compositional standards for cheese and cream remain in force until December 2018.
<u>The Food</u> <u>Supplements</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2003</u> (SSI 2003/278)	01/08/2005	Implements the provisions of Directive 2002/46/EC. Regulates the sale of food supplements with specific requirements regarding labelling, safety and composition, with respect to	Directive 2002/46/EC	Establishes harmonised rules for the labelling of food supplements and introduces specific rules on vitamins and minerals in food supplements.	Food supplements: guidance and FAQs

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		the vitamins, minerals and other forms which may be used in food supplements.			
Amended by: <u>The Medicines</u> (Marketing <u>Authorisations etc.)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2005 (SI</u> <u>2005/2759)</u>	30/10/2005	Amends regulation 3 (Scope of Regulations) with new Directive references.			
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> (<u>SSI 2005/616</u>)	01/01/2006	Revokes Regulation 10 (Defence in relation to exports). These regulations provides the execution and enforcement of Regulation (EC) No 882/2004 on official controls.			
<u>The Food</u> <u>Supplements</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2007</u> (SSI 2007/78)	06/04/2007	Amends regulation 2(1) (Interpretation), Schedule 1 and Schedule 2. These Regulations implement, for Scotland, Commission Directive 2006/37/EC amending Annex II to Directive 2002/46/EC as regards the inclusion of			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		certain substances. Commission Directive			
<u>The Food</u> <u>Supplements,</u> <u>Vitamins, Minerals</u> <u>and Other</u> <u>Substances</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2009</u> (SSI 2009/438)	01/01/2010	Provides the execution and enforcement of Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1170/2009 amending Directive 2002/46/EC and Regulation (EC) No. 1925/2006 as regards the lists of vitamins and minerals and their forms that can be added to foods, including food supplements. These Regulations also update the references to Directives referred to in the 2003 Regulations.			
<u>The Food Information</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
The Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars (Scotland)	20/11/2013	Implements Directive 2001/112/EC in Scotland – Prescribes definitions and	Council Directive 2001/112/EC	Prescribes definitions and reserved descriptions for certain designated fruit juice	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and-

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013 No. 305)		reserved descriptions for certain designated fruit juice products.		products.	composition
Amended by: <u>The Food Information</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
The Honey (Scotland) Regulations 2015 (SSI 2015 No. 208)	24/06/2015	Prescribes definitions and reserved descriptions for certain specified honey products	Directive 2001/110/EC	As adopted by European Economic Area Joint Committee Decision 99/2002. Sets out the names, product descriptions, definitions and compositional criteria that apply to honey. Recognition that pollen should not be considered an ingredient of honey.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
The Infant Formula and Follow on Formula (Scotland) Regulations (SSI 2007/549)	Regulation 31(2) CIF on 01/01/2010 and	Gives effect to Directives 2006/141/EEC prohibits the marketing of infant formula or follow on formula unless conditions are	Directive 2006/141/EC	Lays down compositional and labelling requirements for infant formulae and follow on formulae.	
	otherwise 11/01/2008	met.	Regulation (EU) No 609/2013	Enables the use of goats' milk proteins in the manufacture of infant formula and follow-on formula. It lowers the minimum protein levels permitted in follow-on formula manufactured	
Amended by: <u>The Infant Formula</u> <u>and Follow on</u> <u>Formula (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2008</u> <u>(SSI 2008/322)</u>	04/11/2008	Gives effect to the decision of the Court of Session in the Petition of the Infant and Dietetic Food Association Limited and others for Judicial Review of a decision by the Scottish Ministers to make the 2007 regulations. The Court held that the 2007 Regulations, in relation to the enforcement of labelling requirements, were invalid. The 2008 amendment rectifies that position.		from protein hydrolysates to bring it in line with infant formula. Removes the specific provisions on infant formula and follow on formula intended for export to third countries.	
<u>The Infant Formula</u> <u>and Follow on</u>	28/02/2014	Implements amendments to Directive 2006/141/EC with regard to protein			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Formula (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/12)		requirements for infant formulae and follow-on formulae.			
<u>The Foods for</u> <u>Specific Groups</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2016</u> (SSI 2016/190)	20/07/2016	Implements <u>Regulation (EU)</u> <u>No 609/2013</u> changes.			
<u>The Jam and</u> <u>Similar Products</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2004</u> (SSI 2004/133)	28/04/2004	Implements Directive 2001/113/EC in Scotland – prescribes definitions and reserved descriptions for certain designated jam products and contains national measures for similar products.	Directive 2001/113/EC	Prescribes definitions and reserved descriptions for fruit jams, jellies and marmalades and sweetened chestnut puree intended for human consumption.	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition
Amended by: <u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> <u>(SSI 2005/616)</u>	01/01/2006	<i>Revokes regulation 8 (Defence in relation to exports).</i>			
<u>The Food Additives</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u>	20/01/2010	Updates the definition of			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>(SSI 2009/436)</u>		permitted sweetener.			
<u>The Food Additives,</u> <u>Flavourings,</u> <u>Enzymes and</u> <u>Extraction Solvents</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/266)	31/10/2013	Updates references to EU instruments.			
The Kava-kava in Food (Scotland) Regulations 2002 (SSI 2002/523)	01/01/2003	Prohibits the sale, offer, exposure or advertisement for sale, and the importation into Scotland, of any food consisting of, or containing Kava-kava.			
Amended by: <u>The Kava- kava in</u> <u>Food (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2004</u> <u>(SSI 2004/244)</u>	16/06/2004	Provides for an exception to the prohibition imposed by the principal Regulations for food imported from an EEA State, if it originates in an EEA State or originates outside the EEA but is in free circulation in Member States, and is being, or is to be, exported to an EEA State other than the United Kingdom and update			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
		definitions.			
The Products Containing Meat etc. (Scotland) Regulations 2014 (SSI 2014/289)	04/02/2014	Prohibits, subject to certain exceptions, sale of uncooked products containing certain ingredients, restricts the use of reserved descriptions unless meat product satisfies certain requirements and provides additional labelling requirements for certain meat products.			
Amended by: <u>The Products</u> <u>Containing Meat etc</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2016</u> <u>(SSI 2016/24)</u>	25/02/2016	Inserts a reference to section 22 of the Food Safety Act 1990, permitting the use of the defence of publication in the course of business in circumstances covered by SSI 2014/289.			
The Natural Mineral Water, Spring Water and Bottled Drinking Water	30/10/2007	Requires recognition of water as "natural mineral water" and set standards for bottled spring water and bottled	Council Directive 2009/54/EC	Makes provision for the exploitation and marketing of natural mineral waters.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(Scotland) (No 2) Regulations 2007 (SSI 2007/483)		drinking water.			
Amended by: <u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u> <u>(SSI 2009/273)</u>	16/07/2009	Updates various references and clarifies the provision under which natural mineral water must be free of specified organisms, to provide that such water must be free of them both at source and during marketing	Council Directive 98/83/EC	Concerns the quality of water intended for human consumption.	
<u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010/89)	09/04/2010	Provides the execution and enforcement of Commission Regulation (EU) No. 115/2010; and implement Article 7.1 to 3 and 6 of Council Directive 98/83/EC relating to the quality of water intended for human consumption.	Commission Directive 2003/40/EC	Establishes the list, concentration limits and labelling requirements for the constituents of natural mineral waters and the conditions for using ozone- enriched air for the treatment of natural mineral waters and spring waters.	
<u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u>	09/04/2010	Corrects errors in the new Schedules 1A and 9 of SSI 2010/89 to be inserted by those Regulations into the	Commission Regulation 115/2010	Lays down the conditions for removing fluoride from bottled natural mineral water and spring water.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Amendment (No.2) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/127)		2007 Regulations.	Council Directive 2013/51/ Euratom	Concerns requirement to monitor for radioactive substances in spring water and bottled drinking water	
<u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations</u> <u>2011(SSI 2011/94)</u>	14/03/2011	Updates a reference in regulation 3(1)(a) to the Veterinary Medicines Regulations 2009 (regulation 2(2)) and provides that languages in addition to English may be marked or labeled on a bottle (regulation 2(3)).	Commission Directive 2015/1787	Amends Annexes II and III to Council Directive 98/83 on the quality of water intended for human consumption	
<u>The Food Information</u> (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates references to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
<u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2015</u> <u>(SSI 2015/363)</u>	28/11/2015	Implements, Council Directive 2013/51/Euratom on radioactivity monitoring requirements in relation to spring water and drinking water in a bottle			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Natural Mineral</u> <u>Water, Spring Water</u> <u>and Bottled Drinking</u> <u>Water (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2017</u> <u>(SSI 2017/287)</u>	27/10/2017	Implements the requirement in Commission Directive 2015/1787 to remove the need for local authority audit and check monitoring. Further secondary legislation will be made in due course to implement other requirements of this Directive affecting bottled waters.			
The Foods for Specific Groups (Scotland) Regulations 2016 (SSI 2016/190)	20/07/2016	Provides for the enforcement of Regulation (EU) 609/2013 on food intended for infants and young children, food for special medical purposes, and total diet replacement for weight control.	Regulation (EU) No. 609/2013	Provides for a replacement for PARNUTS regime. Provides a framework and gives general requirements for food intended for infants and young children, food for special medical purposes and total diet replacement for weight control. Specific requirements will come in the form of delegated acts which will apply over the next few years	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Nutrition and</u> <u>Health Claims</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2007</u> (SSI 2007/383)	01/10/2007	Makes provisions to enforce Regulation (EC) No 1924/2006 and sets out offences and penalties.	Regulation (EC) No 1924/2006/EC	Describes how nutrition and health claims should be used and procedure for authorisation of a claim.	http://www.foodstandards .gov.scot/downloads/Nutri tion_and_health_claims guidance_November_201 1.pdf
Amended by: <u>The Nutrition and</u> <u>Health Claims</u> (Scotland) <u>Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010</u> (SSI 2010 No. 307) <u>The Food Information</u>	01/10/2010	Changes to definitions of Regulation 1924/2996 Updates references to EU legislation and removes references to Food Labelling			
<u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)		Regulations 1996			
The Processed Cereal-based Foods for Infants and Young Children (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/8)	06/03/2005	Implements Commission Directive 2006/125/EC, Prohibits the sale of processed cereal based food and baby foods unless they comply with manufacturing, compositional and labelling requirements.	Commission Directive 2006/125	Regulates the manufacturing, processing and labelling of processed cereal based foods and baby foods.	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
Amended by: <u>The Tryptophan in</u> <u>Food (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/479)	11/11/2005	Revokes Regulation 13– which contained amendments to 1990 Regulations revoked by SSI 2005/479).			
<u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> (<u>SSI 2005/616</u>)	01/01/2006	<i>Revokes Regulation 11 (defence in relation to exports).</i>			
<u>The Food for</u> <u>Particular Nutritional</u> <u>Uses (Scotland)</u> (Miscellaneous <u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2007</u> (SSI 2007 No. 424)	15/10/2007	Updates definition of the Directive to reflect changes in EU legislation.			
<u>The Plant Protection</u> <u>Products Regulations</u> 2011 (SI 2011/2131)	24/09/2011	Updates definition of pesticide residue.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Food Information</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Updates reference to Food Labelling regulations 1996 with Regulation 1169/2011 on Food Information to Consumers.			
The Quick Frozen Foodstuffs Regulations 1990 (SI 1990/2615)	10/01/1991	Implements Council Directive 89/108/EEC. Prohibits the placing on the market of a quick frozen foodstuff unless certain conditions are met.	Council Directive 89/108/EEC	Sets out the rules that apply to quick frozen foodstuffs.	
As amended by: <u>The Food (Forces</u> <u>Exemptions)</u> <u>(Revocations)</u> <u>Regulations 1992 (SI</u> <u>1992/2596)</u>	16/11/1992	Revokes Regulation 2(2)(b) and (c) and regulation 2(3) (interpretation and scope).	Commission Regulation (EC) 37/2005	Monitors temperatures in the means of transport, warehousing and storage of quick frozen foodstuffs intended for human consumption.	
<u>The Quick Frozen</u> <u>Foodstuffs</u> (Amendment) <u>Regulations 1994 (SI</u> <u>1994/298)</u>	01/09/1994	Updates definitions in regulation 2. Temperature recording requirements at 6A and measuring 7A. Also new Schedule 2.			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Food Labelling</u> <u>Regulations 1996 (SI</u> <u>1996/1499)</u>	01/07/1996	Updates provisions in the interpretation section of the 1990 Regulations.			
<u>The Food Safety (Act</u> of Accession <u>concerning the</u> <u>Czech Republic and</u> <u>other States)</u> (<u>Consequential</u> <u>Amendments)</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2004</u> (<u>SSI 2004/395)</u>	07/10/2004	Introduces regulation 5 (5) relating to implementing powers in Member States.			
<u>The Quick frozen</u> <u>Foodstuffs</u> (<u>Amendment</u>) (<u>Scotland</u>) <u>regulations 2007 SSI</u> 2007/106)	16/03/2007	Makes various amendment to take account of changes required by the EU legislation.			
		Updates definitions in removes references to the			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	Food Labelling Regulations 1996, referring instead to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011.			
The Specified Sugar Products (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/527)	28/11/2003	Implements Directive 2001/111/EC. Provides definitions and reserved descriptions for certain specified sugar products.	Directive 2001/111/EC	Makes provision about certain sugars intended for human consumption and furthermore, in order to bring it into line with general Community legislation on foodstuffs – extraction	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition
As amended by: <u>The Official Feed and</u> <u>Food Controls</u> <u>(Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> <u>(SSI 2005/616)</u>	01/01/2006	Revokes Regulation 8 (defence in relation to exports).		solvents and methods of analysis.	
<u>The Food Additives</u> (<u>Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u> (SSI 2009/436)	20/01/2010	Provides an update to note 7 of Schedule 1 regarding permitted substances on extraction solvents and food additives.			
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) <u>Regulations 2014</u>	13/12/2014	<i>Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the</i>			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
(SSI 2014/312)		Food Labelling Regulations 1996.			
The Spreadable Fats, Milk and Milk Products (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/216)	01/07/2008	Provides for the execution and enforcement of certain provisions of the single Common Market Organisation Regulation (1308/2013).	Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013	Establishes a common organisation of agricultural markets and a specific provision for certain agricultural products.	https://www.gov.uk/guida nce/food-standards- labelling-durability-and- composition
As amended by: <u>The Single Common</u> <u>Market Organisation</u> (Consequential <u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2013 (SI</u> <u>2013/3235</u>)	01/01/2014	Reflects the introduction of the EU single Common Market Organisation Regulation for agricultural products, amending the 2008 Regulations in accordance with the changes introduced therein.	Supplemented by <u>Commission</u> <u>Regulation</u> (EC) No 445/2007	Lays down detailed rules for the application of Council Regulation 2991/94/EC laying down standards for spreadable fats and of Council Regulation 189/87/EC on the protection of designations used in the marketing of milk and milk products. Largely replaces Council Regulation (EC) No 1234/2007.	
<u>The Tryptophan in</u> <u>Food (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2005</u> (SSI 2005/479)	11/11/2005	Prohibits the addition of tryptophan to food and the sale of food containing tryptophan, while revoking Reg 13 of the Processed Cereal-based Foods and Baby Foods for infants and			

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance
As amended by: <u>The Food for</u> <u>Particular Nutritional</u> <u>Uses (Addition of</u> <u>Substances for</u> <u>Specific Nutritional</u> <u>Purposes) (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2009</u> <u>(SSI 2009/427)</u>	01/01/2010	Young children (Scotland) Regulations 2004. <i>Makes amendments to</i> <i>references to EU instruments</i> <i>and introduces an exemption</i> <i>for L-tryptophan and its salts.</i>			

The Food Labelling Regulations 1996 amendments can be found below.

The Food Safety Act 1990 amendments:

(this does not include any of the Commencement Orders)

<u>The Food Safety Act 1990 (Consequential Modifications) (No 2) (Great Britain) Order (SI 1990/2487)</u> (as amended) Amends various Orders and Regulations which refer to legislation repealed by the Food Safety Act. CIF 01/01/1991

The Food Safety Act 1990 (Consequential Modifications) (Scotland) Order 1990 (SI 1990/2625) CIF 01/01/1991

Detention of Food (Prescribed Forms) Regulations 1990 (SI 1990/2614) CIF 10/01/1991

<u>Food Safety (Improvement and Prohibition-Prescribed Forms) Regulations 1991</u> (SI 1991/100) CIF 14/07/1991

Tribunals and Inquiries Act 1992 16/07/1992

Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 Chapter 40 amending the statutory burdens placed on businesses. CIF 03/11/1994

Local Government etc. (Scotland) Act 1994 03/11/1994

<u>The Deregulation (Improvement of Enforcement Procedures) (Food Safety Act 1990) Order 1996 (SI 1996/1683).</u> Requires that enforcement officers must give written notification of intention to serve notice. CIF 19/07/1996

<u>The Deregulation (Slaughterhouses Act 1974 and Slaughter of Animals (Scotland) Act 1980) Order</u> (SI 1996/2235) CIF 11/09/1996 Petroleum Act 1998 11/06/1998

The Scotland Act 1998 (Consequential Modifications) (No.2) Order (SI 1999/1820) CIF 01/07/1999

<u>Food Standards Act 1999</u> Chapter 28 to establish the Food Standards Agency. 11/11/1999

Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 11/05/2001

Water Industry (Scotland) Act 2002 01/03/2002

The Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food (Dissolution) Order (SI 2002/794) CIF 27/03/2002

Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003 26/03/2003

Statute Law (Repeals) Act 2004 22/07/2004

The Food Safety (Act of Accession concerning the Czech Republic and other States) (Consequential Amendments) (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/395) (SI 2004/395) CIF 07/10/2004

Civil Partnership Act 2004 18/11/2004 The Food Safety Act 1990 (Amendment) Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/2990) Amends the Act to align the definition of 'food' with the definition in the General Food Regulations and in respect of public consultation requirements, to remove duplication with directly applicable provisions in the EC Regulation. CIF 07/12/2004

The General Food Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/3279)

Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 21/12/2005

Tribunals, Courts and Enforcement Act 2007

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 30/10/2007

Public Health etc. (Scotland) Act 2008 16/07/2008

The Treaty of Lisbon (Changes in Terminology) Order (SI 2011/1043) 22/04/2011

<u>The Food (Miscellaneous Amendment and Revocation) (Scotland) Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/83) 06/04/2013

The Food Safety (Sampling and Qualifications) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/84) CIF 06/04/2013

The Food (Scotland) Act 2015 CIF 01/04/2015

Guidance: Commission guidance for FBOs and enforcers on (EC) 178/2002

The Food Labelling Regulations 1996 (SI 1996 No. 1499) amendments:

The Bread and Flour Regulations 1998 (SI 1998/141) The Food Labelling (Amendment) Regulations 1998 (SI 1998/1398) The Food Labelling (Amendment) Regulations 1999 (SI 1999/747) The Food Labelling (Amendment) (No. 2) Regulations 1999 (SI 1999/1483) The Food Irradiation Provisions (Scotland) Regulations 2000 (SSI 2000/309) The Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts (Scotland) Regulations 2001 (SSI 2001/38) The Food Labelling Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2002 (SSI 2002/524) The Cocoa and Chocolate Products (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/291) The Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/293) The Condensed milk and Dried Milk (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/311) The Specified Sugar Products (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/527) The Honey (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/569) The Food Labelling Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2003 (SSI 2003/578) The Meat Products (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/6) The Jam and Similar Products (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/133)

Page 72 of 116

The Food Labelling Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/269) The Food Safety (Act of Accession concerning the Czech Republic and other States) (Consequential Amendments) (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/395)

The Food Labelling Amendment (No 2) (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/472)

The Food Labelling Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2005 (SSI 2005/222)

The Food Labelling Amendment (No. 3) (Scotland) Regulations 2005 (SSI 2005/542)

The Official Feed and Food Controls (Scotland) Regulations 2005 (SSI 2005/616)

The Food Hygiene (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/3)

The Nutrition and Health Claims (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (SSI 2007/383)

The Food Labelling (Declaration of Allergens) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/180)

The Egg and Chick (Scotland) (No. 2) Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/395)

The Food Labelling (Nutrition Information) (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/328)

The Food Labelling (Declaration of Allergens) (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/374)

The Food Enzymes (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/435)

The Food for Particular Nutritional Uses (Miscellaneous Amendments) (Scotland) 2010 (SSI 2010/48)

The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/327)

The Flavourings in Food (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/439)

The Egg and Chicks (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/450)

Page 73 of 116

<u>The Food Labelling (Declaration of Allergens) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (SSI 2011/152)</u> <u>The Drinking Milk (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (SSI 2011/84)</u>

The Wine Regulations 2011 (SI 2011/2936)

The Food Additives, Flavourings, Enzymes and Extraction Solvents (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/266)

The Single Common Market Organisation (Consequential Amendments) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/3235) CIF 1/01/14

The Food Information (Scotland) Regulations 2014 (SSI 2014/312)

Guidance: Use by date Guidance Notes

The Framework Agreement

The Framework Agreement on Official Feed and Food Controls by Local Authorities provides FSS with a mechanism for implementing its powers under the Food Standards Act to influence and oversee local authority enforcement activity.

http://www.foodstandards.gov.scot/food-safety-standards/regulation-and-enforcement-food-laws-scotland/audit-and-monitoring

FSS Code of Practice for Scotland

The Food Law Code of Practice and associated Practice Guidance for Scotland.

http://www.food.gov.uk/enforcement/enforcework/foodlawcop/copscotland/

Food Legislation led by Other Government Departments

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979	01/04/1979	Prescribes a penalty for mis- describing liquor as spirits or as wine fortified with spirits. Reinforces section 15 of Food Safety Act 1990 for these products.				HMRC Tel: 0300 200 3701
The Alcoholic Liquor Duties (Definition of Cider) Order 2010 (SI 2010/1914)	01/09/2010	Amends the definition of cider In the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979.				HMRC Tel: 0300 200 3701
The Drinking Milk (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (SSI 2011/84)	01/04/2011	Make provision for the enforcement of certain EU legislation.	Regulation (EC) 1308/2013	Establishes a common organisation of the agricultural markets within the EU.		Kevin Matheson Tel: 0300 244
As amended by: <u>The Single Common</u> <u>Market Organisation</u> <u>(Consequential</u> <u>Amendments) Regulations</u> <u>2013</u> (SI 2013/3235)	01/01/2014	Reflects the introduction of the EU single Common Market Organisation Regulation for agricultural products, amending the 2008 Regulations in accordance with the changes introduced therein.				9144
The Food & Environment Protection Act 1985	Wholly in force by	Authorises making of emergency orders. Controls				Kevin Matheson

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
<u>(FEPA)</u>	01/01/1986	the deposit of substances and articles in the sea. Regulates pesticides and substances, preparations and organisms prepared or used for the control of pests or for protection against pests; and for connected purposes.				Tel: 0300 244 9144
The N-nitrosamines and N-nitrosatable Substances in Elastomer or Rubber Teats and Dummies (Safety) Regulations 1995 (SI 1995/1012)	28/04/1995	Implements Commission Directive 93/11/EEC for the UK.	Commission Directive 93/11/EEC	Makes provision regarding testing and standards on the release of N- nitrosamines and N- nitrosatable substances from elastomer or rubber teats and soothers.		Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (SSI 2013/307)	01/12/2013	Consolidates the Animal By- Products legislation to implement the EU legislation for Scotland.	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1069/2009	Laying down health rules as regards animal by- products and derived products not intended for human consumption	http://ww w.gov.sc ot/Topics/ farmingru ral/Agricu Iture/anim	Ian Murdoch Tel: 0300 244 9833
As Amended By: <u>The Animal By-Products</u> (Miscellaneous <u>Amendments) (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2015</u>	01/01/2016	Amended the 2013 Regulations in order to narrow the types of Animal By-Products that may lawfully be disposed of in remote areas, ensuring compliance	Commission Implementin g Regulation (EU) No 142/2011	Sets out the technical and administrative requirements to ensure compliance with Regulation 1069/2009	<u>al-</u> welfare/A BPs	

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
The Beef and Veal Labelling (Scotland) Regulations 2010 (SSI 2010/402)	25/01/2009	with European legislation. Provides for the enforcement of compulsory beef labelling schemes	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1760/2000 Commission Regulation (EC) 1825/2000 Commission Regulation (EC) 566/2008 Regulation (EC) 1308/2013	Establishing a system for the identification and registration of bovine animals and regarding the labelling of beef and beef products Laying down detailed rules for the application of Regulation (EC) No 1760/2000 Rules regarding the marketing of the meat of bovine animals aged 12 months or less. Establishes a common organisation of the agricultural markets within		Heather Curran Tel: 0131 244 9256
The Genetically Modified Organisms (Deliberate Release) (Scotland) Regulations 2002 (SSI 2002/541)	04/12/2002	Implements Directive 2001/18/EC (as amended) in Scotland	Directive 2001/18/EC	Regulates the deliberate release into the environment of genetically modified organisms (GMOs).		Helen Stanley Tel: 0300 244 9503

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
As amended by: <u>The Genetically Modified</u> <u>Organisms (Deliberate</u> <u>Release) (Scotland)</u> <u>Amendment Regulations</u> <u>2004 (SSI 2004/439)</u>	15/11/2004	Giving effect to amendments made to Directive 2001/18/EC .				
The Genetically Modified Organisms (Contained Use) Regulations 2014 (SI 2014/1663)	01/10/2014	Implements Directive 2009/41/EC on the contained use of genetically modified microorganisms.	Directive (EC) 41/2009	Lays down common measures for the contained use of genetically modified micro- organisms with a view to protecting human health and the environment.		Helen Stanley Tel: 0300 244 9503
The Genetically Modified Organisms (Risk Assessment) (Records and Exemptions) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1106)	09/05/1996	Makes provision for 108(1)(a) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 which restricts the import and acquisition of genetically modified organisms. Prescribes the period for which records must be kept of risk assessments and provides for exemptions from the requirement to carry out risk assessments.				Helen Stanley Tel: 0300 244 9503
As amended by:	25/08/1995					

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
The Genetically Modified Organisms (Deliberate Release and Risk Assessment-Amendment) Regulations 1997 (SSI 1997/1900)The Genetically Modified Organisms(Contained Use) Regulations 2000 (SI 2000/2831)The Medicines (Marketing Authorisations etc.) Amendment Regulations 2005 (SI 2005/2759)	15/11/2000 30/10/2005					
The Genetically Modified Organisms (Transboundary Movements)(Scotland) Regulations 2005 (SSI 2005/316)	30/06/2005	Provides for the execution and enforcement of <u>EC</u> <u>Regulation 1946/2003.</u>	Regulation (EC) No 1946/2003	Implements provisions of the Cartagena Protocol on preventing biotechnical risks, to ensure an adequate level of protection for the transfer, handling and use of genetically modified organisms that may have adverse effects on the environment and human health.		Helen Stanley Tel: 0300 244 9503
The Trade in Animals and Related Products	01/07/2012	Gives effect to EU law concerning the import of	Council Directive	Concerning veterinary checks in intra-Community		Scott Sayers

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Scotland) Regulations 2012 (SSI 2012/177)As amended by: The Trade in Animals and Related Products (Scotland) Amendment Order 2012 (SSI 2012/ 198)		animals and animal products from other Member States and third countries.	89/662/EEC Council Directive 90/425/EEC	trade with a view to the completion of the internal market. Concerning veterinary and zootechnical checks applicable in intra- Community trade in certain live animals and products with a view to the completion of the internal market.		Tel: 0300 244 9835
		Council Directive <u>97/78/EC</u>	Lays down the principles governing the organisation of veterinary checks on products entering the Community from third countries.			
			Commission Decision <u>2007/275/E</u> <u>C</u>	Concerning lists of animals and products to be subject to controls at border inspection posts under Council Directive 97/78/EC.		
				Lays down health rules		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
			Regulation (EC) No <u>1069/2009</u>	as regards animal by- products and derived products not intended for human consumption.		
The Products of Animal Origin (Disease Control) (Scotland) Order 2008 (SSI 2018/158)	12/05/2008	This Order transposes in Scotland Articles 3 and 4 of Council Directive 2002/99/EC laying down the animal health rules governing the production, processing, distribution and introduction of products of animal origin for human consumption.	Council Directive 2002/99/EC	Lays down the animal health rules governing the production, processing, distribution and introduction of products of animal origin for human consumption.		Alastair Douglas Tel: 0300 244 9803
As amended by: <u>The Products of Animal</u> <u>Origin (Disease Control)</u> <u>(Scotland) Amendment</u> <u>Order 2009 (SSI</u> <u>2009/174)</u>		The amendment introduced controls on SVD seropositive pigs (incl. requirement to slaughter only in a designated slaughterhouse) and included amendments in respect of restricted meat from restricted poultry intended for supply on the domestic market.				
The Eggs and Chicks (Scotland) (No.2)	19/12/2008	Revokes and remakes, with modifications, the Eggs and	Regulation (EC)	Single instrument which establishes a common		Kevin Matheson

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/395)		Chicks (Scotland) Regulations to account for changes to EU legislation.	<u>1308/2013</u>	organisation of the market for agricultural products.		Tel: 0300 244 9144
As amended by: <u>The Eggs and Chicks</u> <u>(Scotland) Amendment</u> <u>Regulations 2010 (SSI</u> <u>2010 No. 450)</u>	29/01/2011	Amendments to allow for enforcement of provisions of EU law relating to salmonella serotypes in egg shells which might be intended for human consumption.	Commission Regulation 589/2008			
<u>The Food Information</u> (Scotland) Regulations 2014 (SSI 2014/312)	13/12/2014	<i>Updates to refer to Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 rather than the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.</i>				
The Marketing of Horticultural Produce (Scotland) Regulations 2009 (SSI 2009/23)	01/07/2009	Provides a statutory framework to ensure enforcement of EU marketing rules in the fruit and vegetable sector.	Regulation (EC) 1308/2013	Single instrument which establishes a common organisation of the market for agricultural products.		Romy Strachan, Tel: 0300 244 9853
As amended by: <u>Marketing of Horticultural</u>	10/10/2011	Amendments to reflect the changes brought about	Commission Implementin	Lays down rules in respect of the fruit and vegetables		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Produce (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 (SSI 2011/324)		following the publication of Commission Implementing Regulations containing details rules on marketing of fruit and vegetables.	g Regulation 543/2011	and process fruit and vegetables sectors.		
<u>Single Common Market</u> <u>Organisation</u> <u>(Consequential</u> <u>Amendments) Regulations</u> <u>2013.</u> (SI 2013/3235)	01/01/2014	Reflects the introduction of the EU single Common Market Organisation Regulation for agricultural products, amending the 2008 Regulations in accordance with the changes introduced therein.				
The Olive Oil (Marketing Standards) Regulations 2014 (SI 2014/195)	13/12/2014	Provides for the enforcement and implementation of the relevant EU instruments relating to the marketing standards of olive oil.	Regulation (EC) 1308/2013	Single instrument which establishes a common organisation of the market for agricultural products.		Kevin Matheson Tel: 0300 244 9144
			Commission Implementin g Regulation	Lays down detailed rules relating to the marketing standards for olive oil.		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
The Organic Products Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/ 842)	27/04/2009	Provides for the administration and enforcement of Council Regulation (EC) No 834/2007 on organic production and labelling of organic products.	<u>29/2012</u> <u>Council</u> <u>Regulation</u> (EC) No <u>834/2007</u>	Lays down rules regarding organic production and labelling of organic products		Kevin Matheson Tel: 0300 244 9144
As amended by: <u>The Organic Products</u> <u>(Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2010 (SI</u> <u>2010/1902)</u>	01/10/2010	Makes a number of amendments to facilitate enforcement of Council Regulation 834/2007.				
The Preserved Sardines (Marketing Standards) (Scotland) Regulations 1990 (SI 1990/1139)	26/06/1990	Provide for the execution and enforcement of EU legislation relating to the marketing of preserved sardines.	Council Regulation (EEC) No. 2136/89	Laying down common marketing standards for preserved sardines.		Lorraine McEwan Tel: 0300 244 9149
As amended by: <u>The Food Safety Act 1990</u> <u>(Consequential</u> <u>Modifications) (Scotland)</u> <u>Order 1990 (SI 1990/</u> 2625)	01/01/1991	Revokes Reg 3 (powers of authorised officers)				
The Sea Fish (Marketing Standards) (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (SSI 2004/498)	14/12/2004	Makes provision for the enforcement in Scotland of Community Regulations laying down common	Regulation (EC) 1379/2013	Established a single common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products,		Lorraine McEwan Tel: 0300 244

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
		marketing standards and related rules as to marketing for certain species of sea fish, including shellfish.		including setting out rules on common marketing standards.		9149
The Pesticides (Maximum Residue Levels) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (SSI No. 2008/342)	18/11/2008	Provides for the enforcement of EU provisions setting maximum residue levels of pesticides in or on food and feed of plant and animal origin.	Council Regulation (EC) No 396/2005	Regulation on maximum residue levels of pesticides in or on food and feed of plant and animal origin.		Romy Strachan / Graham Hall Tel: 0300 244 9853 / 0300 244 9853
<u>The Poultrymeat</u> (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (SSI No. 2011/318	10/10/2011	Makes provision for the enforcement and execution of directly applicable European marketing standards relating to poultry meat.	Commission Regulation 543/2008 Regulation	Lays down detailed rules on the marketing standards for poultry meat.		Kevin Matheson Tel: 0300 244 9144
As amended by: <u>The Food Safety</u> <u>(Sampling and</u> <u>Qualifications) (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/84)	06/04/2013		(EC) 1308/2013	Establishes a single common organisation of the markets in agricultural products, including setting out rules on marketing standards.		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
			EC Reg. 1216/2007 Regulation (EU) No 1151/2012	Lays down detailed rules for the implementation of rules on traditional specialties. Lays down rules on quality schemes for agricultural products.		Fraser Dryburgh Tel: 0131 244 9290
The Scotch Whisky Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/2890)	23/11/2009	Implements additional national requirements required by Regulation (EC) No 110/2008 on the definition, description, presentation, labelling and the protection of geographical indications of spirit drink, specifically in respect of Scotch whisky.	Regulation (EC) No 110/2008	On the definition, description, presentation, labelling and the protection of geographical indications of spirit drinks.		Neil Sinclair Tel: 0300 244 9280
<u>The Spirit Drink</u> <u>Regulations 2008 (SI</u> <u>2008/3206)</u>	16/01/2009	Provides for the enforcement of Regulation (EC) No 110/2008 on the definition, description, presentation, labelling and the protection of geographical indications of spirit drink.	Regulation (EC) No 110/2008	On the definition, description, presentation, labelling and the protection of geographical indications of spirit drinks		Neil Sinclair Tel: 0300 244 9280
The Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (Scotland) Regulations	28/05/2010	Provides for the enforcement of the EU regulations, which lay down rules for the prevention, control and	Regulation 999/2001/E C of the European	Lays down rules for the prevention, control and eradication of certain transmissible spongiform		Ian Murdoch Tel: 0300 244 9833

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
<u>2010 (SSI 2010/177)</u>		eradication of certain TSEs. In addition, prohibits placing on the market of Products derived from animals born or reared within the UK before 01/08/96 and authorises	Parliament and of the Council	encephalopathies.		
		certain MSs to revise their annual BSE monitoring programmes.	Commission Decision 2009/719/E C	Requires certain listed Member States to revise their annual BSE monitoring programmes.		
			Commission Decision 2007/411/E C	Prohibits placing on the market of products derived from animals born or reared within the UK before 1/8/1996.		
The Animals and Animal Products (Examination for Residues and Maximum Residue Limits) (England and Sections)	01/07/2015	Implements Directive 1996/23/EC. Sets out restrictions on veterinary medicinal substances that can be used to treat food-	Council Directive 1996/23	Introduces measures to monitor certain substances in animals and animal products		Jesus Gallego Tel: 0300 244 9796
Scotland) Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/787)		producing animals, offences relating to possession of banned substances for use in food-producing animals as growth promoters and for the	Council Directive 1996/22	Prohibits the use of certain substances in stockfarming		
		sale of animals/animal products containing residues of vet medicines at illegal levels.	Regulation (EC) 470/2009	Sets out procedures the establishment of residue limits of pharmacologically active substances in		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
As amended by: <u>The Food Safety</u> <u>(Sampling and</u> <u>Qualifications) (Scotland)</u> <u>Regulations 2013</u> (SSI 2013/84)	06/04/2013		Commission Regulation (EU) 37/2010	foodstuffs of animal origin. Sets the residue limits of pharmacologically active substances in foodstuffs of animal origin.		
The Charges for Residues Surveillance Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/ 2285)	01/10/2006	Implements charges applicable to food industry to cover residues surveillance costs				Veterinary Medicines Directorate Tel: 01932 336911
As amended by: <u>The Charges for Residues</u> <u>Surveillance (Amendment)</u> <u>Regulations 2011 (SI</u> <u>2011/2945)</u>	09/01/2012	Updates the charges contained in the Regulations.				Eric Crutcher Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA) <u>e.crutcher@</u> <u>vmd.defra.g</u> <u>si.gov.uk</u>
The Veterinary Medicines Regulations 2011 (SI 2011/ 2159)	01/10/2011	Implemenst Directive 2001/82/EC	Directive 2001/82/EC	Concerning the manufacture, use and supply of veterinary medicines, medicated feed	VMD website	Veterinary Medicines Directorate Tel:

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
				and specified feed additives.		01932 336911
As amended by: <u>The Veterinary Medicines</u> (<u>Amendment) Regulations</u> 2012 (SI 2012/2711)	01/12/2012	Amends the 2011 Regulations to require that manufacturers and distributors of feeding stuffs containing veterinary medicinal products must be approved.	Commission Regulation (EC) 1234/2008	Introduces a new fees structure concerning the examination of variations to the terms of the Marketing Authorisations for medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicinal products.		Eric Crutcher Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA) <u>e.crutcher@</u> <u>vmd.defra.g</u>
			<u>Council</u> <u>Directive</u> <u>90/167</u>	Laying down conditions governing the preparation, placing on the market and use of medicated feedingstuffs.		<u>si.gov.uk</u>
			Commission Directive 91/412/EEC	Laying down the principles and guidelines of good manufacturing practice for veterinary medicinal products.		
			Regulation (EC) 1831/2003	On additives for use in animal nutrition, in so far as it applies to veterinary medicinal products used in feeding stuffs.		

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Weights and Measures Act 1985 As amended by: <u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Intoxicating</u> <u>Liquor) (Amendment)</u> Order 2001 (SL2001)	13/12/2014		Article 9 1 (e) of <u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> on net quantity.	Enables the enforcement of weights and measures requirements in the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation.		National Measureme nt Office Tel: 020 8943 7272
<u>Order 2001 (SI 2001/</u> <u>1322)</u> <u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Intoxicating</u> <u>Liquor) (Amendment)</u> <u>Order 1994 (SI 1994/</u> <u>1883)</u>						Businesses or members of the public who have queries or complaints regarding the law on
<u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Food)</u> (<u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SI 2014/2975)						weights and measures should visit the Consumer Direct website for more information
The Weights and	06/04/2006		Article 9 1	Enables the enforcement		mornation

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
Measures (Packaged Goods) Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/659) As amended by: <u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Food)</u> (<u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SI 2014/2975)	13/12/2014		(e) of <u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> on net quantity.	of weights and measures requirements in the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation.		or telephone 0845 404 0506.
The Weights and Measures (Specified Quantities) (Pre-packed Products) Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/663)	11/04/09					
The Weights and Measures Act 1963 (Cheese, Fish, Fresh Fruit and Vegetables, Meat and Poultry) Order 1984 (SI 1984/1315) As amended by:	01/09/1984		Article 9 1 (e) of <u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> on Net quantity.	Enables the enforcement of weights and measures requirements in the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation.		
<u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Food)</u> (<u>Amendments)</u> <u>Regulations 2014</u> (SI 2014/2975)	13/12/2014					

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
The Weights and Measures (Miscellaneous Foods) Order 1988 (SI 1988/ 2040)As amended by: The Weights and Measures (Food) (Amendments) Regulations 2014 (SI 2014/2975)	01/01/1989		Article 9 1 (e) of <u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> on net quantity.	Enables the enforcement of weights and measures requirements in the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation.		
The Weights and Measures (Intoxicating Liquor) Order 1988 (SI 1998/2039)As amended by: The Weights and Measures (Intoxicating Liquor) (Amendment) Order 1994 (SI 1994 No 1883)The Weights and	01/01/1989		Article 9 1 (e) of <u>Regulation</u> (EU) No <u>1169/2011</u> on net quantity.	Enables the enforcement of weights and measures requirements in the EU Food Information to Consumers Regulation.		
<u>The Weights and</u> <u>Measures (Food)</u> (Amendments)						

Domestic Legislation (SSI/SI/Reg/Dir)	CIF date	Domestic Legislation Explanatory summary	EU Legislation (As amended)	EU explanatory summary	Link to guidance	Contact details
<u>Regulations 2014</u> (SI 2014/2975)						
The Wine Regulations 2011 (SI 2001/2936)	30/12/2011	Provides a legislative basis to provide specified authorities in the UK with powers to enforce EU Wine rules and sets a system of penalties for non-compliance with those rules.	Council Regulation (EEC) No 1601/91	Lays down general rules on the definition, description and presentation of aromatized wines, aromatized wine- based drinks and aromatized wine-product cocktails.		Neil Sinclair Tel: 0300 244 9280

Recently Revoked Legislation (within the last 2 years)

Revoked Legislation	Date Revoked	Revoked By
The Caseins and Caseinates (Scotland) Regulations 1986	22/12/2016	The Caseins and Caseinates (Scotland) (No2) Regulations 2016
The Caseins and Caseinates (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 1990	22/12/2016	The Caseins and Caseinates (Scotland) (No2) Regulations 2016
The Novel Food and Novel Food Ingredients (Fees) Regulations 1997	01/01/2018	The Novel Foods (Scotland) Regulations 2017
The Novel Foods and Novel Food Ingredients Regulations 1997	01/01/2018	The Novel Foods (Scotland) Regulations 2017

	List of Legislation Expected To Come Into Force In The Next 12 Months					
CIF Date	Title	Purpose	EU legislation			
Unknown	The Jam and Similar Products (Scotland) Regulations 2018	To amend the Scottish regulations to take account of the reduced soluble solids content (i.e sugar level) for jam, extra jam, jelly, extra jelly, marmalade and sweetened chestnut purée				
		The specific 'reduced sugar jam' 25-50% category has also been removed, as this has been succeeded by Regulation EC 1924/2006 on nutrition and health claims on foods.				
Winter 2018	The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food	To provide for the execution and enforcement of :				
	(Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2018	a) Commission Regulation (EU) 2016/1416 amending and correcting Commission Regulation (EU) 10/2011 on plastic materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.	Commission Regulation (EU) 2016/1416			
		b) Commission Regulation (EC) No 282/2008 on recycled plastic materials and articles intended to come into contact with food.	Regulation (EC) No 282/2008			
		c) Regulation (EU) 2018/213 on the use of bisphenol A in varnishings and coatings intended to come into contact with food and amending Regulation (EU) 10/2011 on the use of BPA in plastic food contact materials.	Commission Regulation 2018/213			

May 2018	TBC?	Establishing mitigation measures and benchmark levels for the reduction of the presence of acrylamide in food.	Commission regulation (EU) 2017/2158
July 2018	TBC?	Amending regulation 2074/2005 as regards official controls on fishery products caught by vessels flying the flag of a MS and introduced into Union after being transferred in 3Cs and establishing a model health certificate for those products.	Commission regulation (EU) 2017/1973
January 2019	The Novel Foods (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2018	To amend the current Scottish Regulation in order to provide for the effective and proportionate enforcement of Article 4.1 and 4.2 of Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 which details the verification and consultation process (as laid out in an implementing act) which food businesses must follow prior to placing novel food on the market.	Regulation (EU)2015/2283 on novel foodCommissionImplementingRegulation (EU)2018/456
January 2019	The Food and Food Hygiene (Miscellaneous Amendments) (Scotland) Regulations 2018	To amend out of date references in legislation in a miscellaneous food standards SSI.	

EU Legislation Not Directly Linked to Domestic Instruments

(listed alphabetically)

Areas where there are legal obligations and functions which only apply to EU bodies e.g. European Commission, European Food Safety Authority etc.

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
Commission Decision 2006/197/EC	authorising the placing on the market of food containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize line 1507 (DAS-Ø15Ø7-1) and renewing the authorisation to place on the market feed produced from such maize, pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2007/305/EC	on the withdrawal from the market of Ms1xRf1 (ACS-BNØØ4- 7xACS-BNØØ1-4) hybrid oilseed rape and its derived products
Commission Decision 2007/306/EC	on the withdrawal from the market of Ms1xRf2 (ACS-BNØØ4- 7xACS-BNØØ2-5) hybrid oilseed rape and its derived products
Commission Decision 2007/307/EC	on the withdrawal from the market of Topas 19/2 (ACS- BNØØ7-1) oilseed rape and its derived products
Commission Decision 2007/692/EC	authorising the placing on the market of food and feed produced from genetically modified sugar beet H7-1 (KM- ØØØH71-4) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
Commission Decision 2007/701/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize NK603xMON810 (MON-ØØ6Ø3-6xMON-ØØ81Ø-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2007/702/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 59122 (DAS-59122-7) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2007/703/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 1507xNK603 (DAS-Ø15Ø7-1xMON-ØØ6Ø3-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2008/280/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize GA21 (MON-ØØØ21-9) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2008/730/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean A2704-12 (ACS-GMØØ5-3) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2008/837/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified LLCotton25 (ACS-GHØØ1-3) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2008/933/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON89788 (MON-89788-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2009/184/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing or produced from genetically modified oilseed rape T45 (ACS- BNØØ8-2) resulting from the commercialisation of this oilseed rape in third countries until 2005 pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2009/813/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON 89034 (MON-89Ø34-3) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2009/814/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON 88017 (MON-88Ø17-3) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2009/815/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 59122xNK603 (DAS-59122-7xMON-ØØ6Ø3-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2009/866/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing,

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MIR604 (SYN-IR6Ø4-5) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2010/419/EU	renewing the authorisation for continued marketing of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize Bt11 (SYN-BTØ11-1), authorising foods and food ingredients containing or consisting of field maize Bt11 (SYN-BTØ11-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Decision 2004/657/EC
Commission Decision 2010/420/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON89034xNK603 (MON-89Ø34-3xMON-ØØ6Ø3-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2010/428/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 59122x1507xNK603 (DAS-59122-7xDAS-Ø15Ø7-1xMON- ØØ6Ø3-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Decision 2010/429/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON 88017 x MON 810 (MON-88Ø17-3 x MON-ØØ81Ø-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council

sing the placing on the market of products containing, ting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 59122 (DAS-Ø15Ø7-1xDAS-59122-7) pursuant to ation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament the Council sing the placing on the market of products containing, ting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton 14 (BCS-GHØØ2-5) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
ing of, or produced from genetically modified cotton 4 (BCS-GHØØ2-5) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
sing the placing on the market of products containing, ting of, or produced from genetically modified maize 89034 × MON 88017 (MON-89Ø34-3xMON-88Ø17-3) nt to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European ment and of the Council
sing the placing on the market of products containing, ting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton -236x3006-210-23 (DAS-24236-5xDAS-21Ø23-5) nt to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European ment and of the Council
sing the placing on the market of products containing, ting of, or produced from genetically modified maize × T25 (MON-ØØ6Ø3-6 × ACS-ZMØØ3-2) pursuant to ation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament the Council
sing the placing on the market of products containing,

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON 87427 (MON-87427-7) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/683	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON 87460 (MON 8746Ø-4) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/684	authorising the placing on the market of genetically modified maize NK603 (MON-ØØ6Ø3-6) and renewing the existing maize NK603 (MON-ØØ6Ø3-6) products, pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/685	authorising the placing on the market of genetically modified cotton MON 15985 (MON-15985-7) and renewing the authorisation for existing genetically modified cotton MON 15985 (MON-15985-7) products pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/686	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON 87769 (MON-87769-7) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/687	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified oilseed rape MON 88302 (MON-883Ø2-9) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/688	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton MON 88913 (MON-88913-8) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/689	renewing the authorisation for existing genetically modified cotton MON 531 (MON-ØØ531-6) products pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/690	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton GHB614xLLCotton25 (BCS-GHØØ2-5xACS-GHØØ1-3) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/691	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean BPS-CV127-9 (BPS-CV127-9) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/693	renewing the authorisation for existing genetically modified cotton MON 1445 (MON-Ø1445-2) products pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/695	renewing the authorisation for existing genetically modified cotton MON 531 x MON 1445 (MON-ØØ531-6 x MON-

EU Legislation	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
(As amended)	
	Ø1445-2) products and authorising the placing on the market of cottonseed oil produced from genetically modified cotton MON 531 x MON 1445 (MON-ØØ531-6 x MON-Ø1445-2) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/696	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON87705 (MON-877Ø5-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/697	authorising the placing on the market of genetically modified maize T25 (ACS-ZMØØ3-2) and renewing the existing maize T25 (ACS-ZMØØ3-2) products, pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/698	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean 305423 (DP-3Ø5423-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/699	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton T304-40 (BCS-GHØØ4-7) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/700	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON87708 (MON-877Ø8-9) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
<u></u>	Page 105 of 116

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2015/701	authorising the placing on the market of food containing or consisting of genetically modified oilseed rape GT73, or food and feed produced from that genetically modified organism pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2016/1215	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean FG72 (MST-FGØ72-2) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2016/1216	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON 87708 × MON 89788 (MON-877Ø8-9 × MON-89788-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2016/1217	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON 87705 × MON 89788 (MON-877Ø5-6 × MON-89788-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2016/1685	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize Bt11 × MIR162 × MIR604 × GA21, and genetically modified maizes combining two or three of the events Bt11, MIR162, MIR604 and GA21, and repealing Decisions 2010/426/EU, 2011/892/EU, 2011/893/EU and 2011/894/EU

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1208	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton GHB119 (BCS-GHØØ5-8) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council on genetically modified food and feed
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1209	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize Bt11 × 59122 × MIR604 × 1507 × GA21, and genetically modified maize combining two, three or four of the events Bt11, 59122, MIR604, 1507 and GA21 pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European parliament and of the Council on genetically modified food and feed
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1211	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified cotton 281-24-236 × 3006-210-23 × MON 88913 (DAS-24236-5 × DAS-21Ø23-5 × MON-88913-8) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1212	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize DAS-40278-9, pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European parliament and of the Council on genetically modified food and feed
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/347/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON 87701 × MON 89788 (MON-877Ø1-2 × MON-89788-1) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/651/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MIR162 (SYN-IR162-4) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/81/EC	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean A5547-127 (ACS-GMØØ6-4) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/82/EU	as regards the renewal of the authorisation for continued marketing of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean 40-3-2 (MON-Ø4Ø32-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/83/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean MON 87701 (MON-877Ø1-2) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2012/84/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified soybean 356043 (DP-356Ø43-5) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2013/327/EU	authorising the placing on the market of food containing or consisting of genetically modified oilseed rape Ms8, Rf3 and

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
	Ms8 × Rf3, or food and feed produced from those genetically modified organisms pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2013/648/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified maize MON89034 × 1507 × NK603 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-Ø15Ø7- 1 × MON-ØØ6Ø3-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2013/649/EU	authorising the placing on the market of pollen produced from maize MON 810 (MON-ØØ81Ø-6) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Decision 2013/650/EU	authorising the placing on the market of products containing, consisting of, or produced from genetically modified (GM) maize MON 89034 × 1507 × MON88017 × 59122 (MON- 89Ø34-3 × DAS-Ø15Ø7-1 × MON-88Ø17-3 × DAS-59122-7), four related GM maizes combining three different single GM events (MON89034 × 1507 × MON88017 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-Ø15Ø7-1 × MON-88Ø17-3), MON89034 × 1507 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-Ø15Ø7-1 × DAS-59122-7), MON89034 × MON88017 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × MON- 88Ø17-3 × DAS-59122-7), 1507 × MON 88017 × 59122 (DAS-Ø15Ø7-1 × MON-88Ø17-3 × DAS-59122-7)) and four related GM maizes combining two different single GM events (MON89034 × 1507 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-Ø15Ø7-1), MON89034 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-59122-7), 1507 × MON89034 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-59122-7), 1507 × MON89034 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-59122-7), 1507 × MON89034 × 59122 (MON-89Ø34-3 × DAS-59122-7), 1507 × MON88017 (DAS-Ø15Ø7-1 × MON-88Ø17-3), MON

EU Legislation	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
(As amended)	
	88017 × 59122 (MON-88Ø17-3 × DAS-59122-7)) pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2016/1843	This Regulation lays down transitional measures for the application of Regulation (EC) No 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the accreditation of official laboratories carrying out official testing for Trichinella.
Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 208/2013	Traceability requirements for sprouts and seeds intended for the production of sprouts
Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 636/2014	This Regulation lays down that consignments of unskinned large wild game dispatched to Member States shall be accompanied by a certificate in accordance with the model set out in the Annex.
Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 931/2011	This Regulation lays down traceability requirements set by Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council for food of animal origin.
Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1474	This Regulation allows slaughterhouse operators to use recycled hot
	water to remove microbiological surface contamination from carcases
	in compliance with the conditions for use set out in the Annex to this Regulation.
Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/185	This Regulation lays down transitional measures for the application of certain provisions of EU Regulations 853/2004 and 854/2004.
Commission Regulation (EU) No 101/2013	This Regulation allows operators to use lactic acid to reduce
	microbiological surface contamination on bovine carcases or half
	carcases or quarters at the level of the slaughterhouse in compliance
	with the conditions set out in the Annex to this Regulation.
Commission Regulation (EU) No 16/2011	Laying down implementing measures for the Rapid alert system for food and feed
	Dage 110 of 116

EU Legislation (As amended)	EU Legislation Explanatory summary
Commission Regulation (EU) No 68/2013	Establishes the catalogue of feed materials
Regulation (EC) 1331/2008	This Regulation sets out the role of the Commission and the European Food Safety Authority in the evaluation of new substances or changes to conditions of use in relation to food additives, food enzymes and food flavourings.
Regulation (EC) 627/2006	This Regulation implements Regulation (EC) No 2065/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards quality criteria for validated analytical methods for sampling, identification and characterisation of primary smoke products.
Regulation (EC) No 2160/2003	This Regulation is to ensure that proper and effective measures are taken to detect and to control salmonella and other zoonotic agents at all relevant stages of production, processing and distribution, particularly at the level of primary production, including in feed, in order to reduce their prevalence and the risk they pose to public health.
Regulation (EU) 257/2010	This Regulation sets out the European Food Safety Authority's role to re-evaluate all approved food additives.

Index

	A
4	Δ
▰	

Agriculture Act Alcoholic Liquor	9
Definition of Cider	76
Duties Act	
Animal Feed	12
Feed (Sampling and Analysis and Specified Undesirable Substances	
Hygiene and Enforcement	14
В	
Bread and Flour	
C	
Casein and Caseinates	
Cocoa and Chocolate Products	
Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts	40

Condensed and Dried Milk	41
Contaminants	13

D

Drinking Milk	76
---------------	----

Ε

Emergency Prohibitions	
Dagety Bay	20
Dounreay Nuclear Establishment	20
F	
Fish Labelling	43
Food & Environment Protection Act	76

Food Additives	46
Food Contact Materials	
Teats and Dummies	77
Food for Particular Nutritional Uses	
Use in Energy Restricted Diets Food Hygiene	48
Food Hygiene	18
Food Labelling	
1996 Regulations	51
Beef & Veal	78
Food Labelling Regulations	72
Food Safety - sampling and qualifications	10
Food Safety Act	10
Food Safety Act 1990 amendments	69
Fruit Juices and Nectars	

G

Genetically Modified Organisms	
Animal Feed	
Contained Use	
Genetically Modified Food Scotland	
Risk Assessment – Records and Exemption	
Traceability and Labelling	
Risk Assessment – Records and Exemption Traceability and Labelling Transboundary Movements	80
Н	
Honey	
I	
Imported Foods	
Meat (Disease Control)	
Other Member States & third countries	80

Imports	
Plastic Kitchenware from China	
Speficied Products from China	32
Infants and Young Children	
Processed Cereal-based Foods	
Irradiation1	19
L	
Lot Marking	15
Μ	
Marketing Standards	
Eggs & Chicks	32
Horticulture	33
Organic Products	35
Preserved Sardines	35
Sea Fish	35
Materials and Articles in Contact with Food	24
Ν	
Natural Mineral Water, Spring Water and Bottled Drinking Water	58
0	
Official Controls	
Feed and Food Controls 2009	27
Fishery Products1	17
Meat charges	26
Ρ	
Products Containing Meat	58

Τ

Tranmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies	87
V	
Veterinary Medicines	89
Charges for surveillance	
W	
Weights & Measures	91
Packaged Goods	91



For more information please contact:

Food Standards Scotland Pilgrim House Old Ford Road Aberdeen AB11 5RL

Tel: 01224 285100 Email: <u>enquiries@fss.scot</u>

www.foodstandards.gov.scot

© Crown copyright 2018